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Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022 BHE-_Z__F=FA=1—HIFEZ2FEE
* Revenue o Uz HK$494.6 million 4946 BB T
* Profit before income tax o BRET{S B AT @ F HK$15.6 million 15.6 BB
* Shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2022 HNZEBEZ—F=ZA=t+—-HBREES HK$470.5 million 470.5BABT
* Basic earnings per share o FREAEF| HK1.98 cents 1.98 B4l
2022 2021
s F —E-—F
Revenue (HK$'000) Wz (F#87T) 494,592 422,454
Operating profit (HK$’000) ZE &M (T8 ) 19,158 16,741
Profit before income tax (HK$’000) MRS B EDER (F8BT) 15,582 12,595
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000) BARR S SR (FET) 11,894 10,769
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FBREASER GBAL) 1.98 1.79
Interim dividend per share declared and paid (HK cents) B &k & {488 EIRR 2 (B4L) 0.5 0.5
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) BUESRARERE GBWL) 1 0.5
Net asset value (HK$’'000) BrERE(FBT) 470,521 461,232
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Chairman’s Statement EE#R&H

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2022.

The 2021/2022 financial year was full of complications and
challenges. The coronavirus disease 2019 (the “COVID-19")
pandemic has shaped many aspects of our lives this past year and
disrupted our usual way of life and the way we did business. With
the fifth wave of the pandemic under control in the first quarter of
2022, the market sentiment has shown gradual but slow
improvement since then.

Nevertheless, any recovery from the virus-hit market would likely
be slow due to the uncertainty of any future further outbreak of
new strains of BA.4 and BA.5 Omicron and the return of strict
preventive measures such as social distancing, lockdown of
affected areas, closing off specific public venues, mandatory
hospital quarantine and other travel restriction etc. In addition,
global uncertainty resulting from geopolitical and military conflicts
and trade and economic sanctions leads to rising commodities, oil,
and gas prices, causing worldwide inflation and rising interest
rates. It threatens to dampen consumer confidence and market
sentiment worldwide. In the People’s Republic of China, strict
Omicron closed-off management in major cities disrupted the
logistic chains, causing the fall of gross domestic product (“GDP”)
in the second quarter of 2022, hampering the GDP growth in
2022. In Hong Kong, the actual GDP growth forecast for 2022 was
revised down to 1%-2% following the outbreak of the fifth wave of
COVID-19 in May 2022.

The government’s new round of the Consumption Voucher Scheme
2022, together with the 2022 Employment Support Scheme and
Temporary Unemployment Relief Scheme, would generate more
customer demand in Hong Kong retail, catering and food and
beverage markets, facilitating the recovery of Hong Kong economy
later in 2022.

The residential market declined in the first quarter of 2022
compared to the previous quarter as potential buyers stayed away
from the residential property market due to social distance
restrictions during Hong Kong’s worst fifth wave of the Omicron
outbreak. The outbreak was under control in early April and
levelled off since then. The transactions volume bounced back in
May 2022.

BARK

RAARRREBE-E-_F=A=+T—-HLEFE
ZER -

TR/ CEC_HFEERERXFHERE - T
HE—F - 2019 @RHEEHE ([COVID-19 ) FEHERE
TRMNEFTLNENEE  HEATHENEZFAR
RILESEN BEFARRBET-S-_F%—=
EZE  mhBEESEERE -

R > BT OmicronZEFHEHBA 4K BASHERA
B —SBEABEETHEY  UR™KHEREE
(BIIPTHRER - BEHBRWX - xAEBEAH
BAT - EmEERRE R A REREE) TaEE
REREESHHNAET IS EES T o i BT
ZHCE FEARRLRFTERNSIREIETA -
SRATER BHERRAREME L > Slx£3kH4E
BARME > #MTHESHEREEORTHES -
T AREFE  AMNOmicronmEM T EEH
MHITHWEEBRSERITILYRERE SB =%
¥ CEEERESEETE BE-E -
FENEFLEEK - THEB E-FE-_FHA1KE
KERAKE2019BRBEERE —FE-_FERRi
AR EEKTNTIAZE 1% ZE 2% °

BEBHH - N B _FHERFIR - ER=
FIoFRBA T RGN KL ZEIT - BRE
BNEE BERMHZEESHERER BT
BFETHFBEBLFNES -

EEB REBNERFOmiconmEEREF »
REBWRHBBBEERBL  BE_S-__F
E—ZTENEIEMIEREETHK RRETHANE
ARFHBEEETFRE - REET-E-__FEHA
RAEREIFt o
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Chairman’s Statement EE#R&EH

Following the improved the Omicron epidemic in Hong Kong and
after the government relaxed the social-distancing measures on 21
April 2022, the unexpected, relatively increase in transactions in
the primary market in May 2022 indicates that demand for housing
in Hong Kong will always be strong. We are cautiously optimistic
that the volume of transactions in both the primary and secondary
real estate markets will be picked up steadily throughout in 2022.
Nevertheless, as always, geopolitical tensions, rising commodity
prices, inflation, and interest rate hikes may undermine the
effectiveness of any new measures and policy changes that aim to
revitalise the economic growth of Hong Kong, dampening market
sentiment in the property market.

Our prudent business strategies and our ability to adapt, respond to
and recover from the ever-changing disrupting external
environment ensure operation resilience during this challenging
time. We have managed to maintain growth in revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2022. Therefore, we will propose at the
forthcoming annual general meeting seeking shareholders’
approval for, among other things, the payment of a final dividend
of HKT1 cent per share. The current and quick ratios are 2.0 (2021:
2.0) and 1.4 (2021: 1.2), respectively.

We cautiously explore new business opportunities by capitalising
on our experience and collaborative relationship with reputable
property developers. We will continue to execute current strategies
to optimise the structure, alongside a disciplined approach to
mitigate the negative impact of the upcoming year’s highly
uncertain and unprecedented ever-changing adverse business
environment that cannot be foreseen or measured.

The management would like to thank you for your support and
trust and also express our appreciation for the loyalty and efforts of
our dedicated staff. Their support and contributions have been
indispensable for the Group’s past development; and its prosperity
for years to come.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

14 July 2022

FEEEEOmiconEERBEN BN F=&8==
FNA-+-—HREAREEEER  —F=_-F
TR —FEETHRZES/MAXTEM &
TEBNEBERBBRARY - RMNFERMHIA
RN —FR-FERUTFTHINIZENETEANS
FoFRSEF o AW MEBUEEEK - KEEB
Mg Lk Bk R NS I RE M LU IS B E IR IR
EBAFRKNEAFBERBEREINRRE
HYL TN T IRES

B ESHBEFE URNISERENZERER
RIERL ~ R FIRE BB - REE T ARERAE L ERIR
ERHNEZEEM - FTBE-_TS-_—_F=A=1+—
HIEFE  BOHDEFRRIEK - Bt - RO T
NERERBFARS LRI KEBERIE(EHPEE)
RS REARR B AR 1 B4l o RNttt =R EZ LR 5 5l
H20(ZF=Z—F 1200 R14(ZFB=—F:112)°

BB zABESERRSEERFNILERER
MEEXE  FERRFVELIIE - RFHERH
BRIEN » FROEAZEUTRNREE - RITER
FEENSE - #SHITYHRIRBUMELEN » FR
HRERIR A E N

ERERUERY BTHXESEEUREAEAR
FERATIHNBREL N - BUNZFRABYAER
SBEXRRAKRFHNRENSIE T AHER

BT
E

—E-—FtAtmA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing, wholesale,
retail and installation of architectural builders’ hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture and provision of
interior design services, project and contract management in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

A business review of the Group and an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators during the
year are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis. In
addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and an account of the Group's key relationships with
its employees, customers, suppliers and others that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success
depends are provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Annual Report 2022.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set
out in the Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) are provided in the Corporate Governance Report
of the Annual Report 2022. Save as disclosed herein, during the
year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has complied with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Cayman Islands Companies Act.

During the year, pandemic control measures were gradually lifted
in certain economies as the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) had
slowly brought under control following mass vaccination
worldwide. In Hong Kong, business and local consumption
sentiment improved and the housing market remained stable.
Supply chain and transportation disruptions caused an upsurge in
raw materials and freight costs. The liquidity issue of real estate
developers of the PRC has affected the capital market.

Hong Kong experienced an unexpected marked downturn in the
economy in the first quarter of 2022, with gross domestic product
(“GDP”) contracting by 4.0% in real terms after an increase of
4.7% in the fourth quarter of 2021. It was mainly due to the fifth
wave of the COVID-19 epidemic undergoing drastic changes in
January 2022.

EREHLSHH

Al 55 [B1 5

ARABNEBLFHREER - EMBEQREET
BEERFHEARKME(HENDNSED - #itX
FERZEERLET T8 BRRBERZM - UR
RHZEARITRS  NERESHEE -

7 58 B B9 ol 35 [B1 L I 5 PR IV 35 R B R BB AR I AR R
ATAFERANDNT  ERTEERTIES O -
o AEAREERERKRAVITE - BXEAEHS
HER &P  HEARXNAEATEAZMAXR
AEARDWHMATHEZRAMNGEE  NET
TEICFERIR - o REBRER ©

ANFBIFEBREARZHERATIES EHHMN
TERHNDMHFRTNEIN2FUNERL 2 FEBFHT
TECFFEROULERBREN c RANEIEE
EN BEZE--F=A=1+—HILEE  &xQF
B EHAN - FBARRAE (F622F) ~ IEHFRE
HEBIURTFEES A TENHE ©

TAFE BEURZHANEREE 20198
RHEFH (COVID-19) R IFBIEZBZF - BT LK
B HRREREA R IEHE - EEE - AL RAMIERIEE
BE - TETHERFRE - HUEREH THSEER
MERFERAHT - PEBH~ RRENR R
ERBACRKRBEATIT

FIEEE-FE FBELFENEEZTE X
FAAEFRE(ARBEFSE)F-E=—F%
NEEYK47%FWIHE40%  WIHEERTF=F
“ZHE-A2019BREERELRBRERERZIE
ko
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEEES D

BUSINESS REVIEW (coNT'D)

The government imposed anti-epidemic measures of inbound
control by banning incoming flights from Australia, Canada,
France, India, Pakistan, the Philippines, the United Kingdom and
the United States (the US) and controlling the spread of highly
infectious Omicron outbreak by strict social distancing policy and
shutting down business such as beauty parlours, barber shops, the
restaurant closed at dinner time 6 pm, bars and pubs to sports
premises and karaoke establishments. Hong Kong banned most
public activities on 7 January 2022. The fifth wave peaked in late
March/early April 2022 and eased down in mid-April 2022. All
these restrictive measures have dampened consumer confidence
and sentiments.

On 21 April 2022, the government began to adjust the social
distancing measures by reopening cosmetic beauty services and
allowing the resumption of dinnertime dine-in services in response
to the longing of Hong Kong citizens and the business sectors to
resume business back to normal as soon as practicable. Since 19
May 2022, catering businesses are allowed to extend dinner
services until midnight with a maximum of eight people per table.
The government also introduced the COVID-19 vaccine pass as a
condition of relaxing measures for people to access public
activities.

In addition, the high geopolitical tensions have put the global
economy at risk starting from the first quarter of 2022. This is due
to the confluence of factors that includes military conflict in
Ukraine; international sanctions such as by the US and Europe
against Russia, coupled with geopolitical tensions between the
PRC and the US, have adversely affected global trade, elevating
prices for commodity food and oil, disrupting the supply chain and
logistics. All these factors lead to unexpectedly high inflationary
pressures at a worldwide level. The potential US interest rate hike
further restrains the recovery of the global economy from the
COVID-19 pandemic. These factors are yet to reflect in this
reporting period.

The demand for residential property remained weak in the first
quarter of 2022. Market sentiment was dampened by the
uncertainties of current political situations in Europe, the US-China
tensions, the rise in the prices of commodities and oil, and the
local COVID-19 epidemic situation, with the latter also disrupting
business and trading activities. The number of residential property
transactions, in terms of the total number of sale and purchase
agreements for residential property received by the Land Registry
from January to March 2022 plunged by over 30% compared to
the same period last year.

Ab 55 [ B3 (52)

BFSRiE AR IR HIpG & - 21BN - 'EX &
CENE - BEEA - EEE - REREEMNAEM
I AR IEHISEZARMER Omicron R RS KL
AT RERRR > XAERKR - BLRE &
T(FHRENBTFARNERNA) EBRBEDLE
BEBUFARFROKFAELS - FZE-_F—A8
tH FEZEABSARED - EREREBFT=F
—E=AK/WBWMrESE  HT-F=-_FW0
BHREBETEMN - LERERAIIEREIIERE
BFUORBEERITE °

FZEZZENA=+—B ' WFFRARERE
EEE BERERRS  AFMEBREEARS - KU
EREBHTRREANFERRATERTRRIR
SEELVSHWHE - B-S-_—_FRA+NAE B
BRUFRAFEKBRERSEFR  BRBEZIEN
A o BUSIRHEH 2019 BIRE S HREBITIE
AREFTRSE AR FNNIERBTERM

i BB CFE-ZER HEBARSER
3K RIREFEIERE - LR TEMAERNGER
MAFE 0 BRESREZFEHR - EMEERNETH
KieHE - M EPRBEBUERKRS  2RRAZR
ZAFEWE  KRERIBRR A RONE £ - H A5
RMARZETH - WERREYSHETE S K BK
EAESHELE - XETREMEH-FRHE T £
ZFM2019BRBESHEBFIME - ZZERETH
R HA A AR AR o

FoBEZEFE-ZE  FBYWULERDARS - KX
MNERINBCE BB REEM - PEXRREK KRE®
RABNEERRE AL 2019BRBESHEBLE
W BEE MG MAMRER BRI LS
RRZEFDERTH - HrHEMUA T _—F—
BEZAEFRNEEYIEIZAYEHRITE %
NUIRZFEREFRERBKE30% ©
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONT'D)

We have managed to achieve a growth in our revenue for the
financial year ended on 31 March 2022. The above factors only
affected the last quarter of our sales. The impact of the
uncertainties above might have weakened our performance in the
coming year. We would, as always, work hard to maintain and
strengthen our working relationship and co-operation with
reputable property developers.

REVENUE REVIEW

Revenue by business segment

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group's total turnover was
HK$494.6 million, representing an increase of 17.1% as compared
with the previous year.

Revenue from external customers

A S5 B B (%)

BECB-__F-A=+-HUEUWBRFE BRI
DERPARHEEK - LREAENERERNEE—ZE
MEE - ERTAREZNZBHSEIFRIIKF
HIRIL o MOV —WMERIE - BHERFRMBSEE
HFHPLRRENIERRAREE

U 5 1=
Bl %55 BR5 2 W3

BE-ZE-_F=ZA=+—HLEE XEHALE
WER494.6 BABIT » REFEMI17.1% °

As a percentage of sales

X ANE P U g HHEEFFIH
31 March 31 March
=ZA=+-H =ZA=t+-8
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021
B Z—EBE--& Ty —TE--F B--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 (%) (%) (%)
TET THERT
Architectural builders’ BRAE  IARE
hardware, bathroom REA
collections and others 362,269 322,280 12.4 73.2 76.3
Kitchen collection and furniture B RE1&%& R M 132,323 100,174 32.1 26.8 23.7
494,592 422,454 17.1 100.0 100.0

Profitability by business segment

Reportable segment gross profit

Gross profit margin

LRz HBEF EFIZE (%)
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021
—E-C —E--F Ty —TE--F ZB--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 (%) (%) (%)
TER TET
Architectural builders’ BRES  DAKRE
hardware, bathroom R EAh

collections and others 118,178 115,154 2.6 32.6 35.7
Kitchen collection and furniture HEI&% KR 65,318 43,431 50.4 49.4 43.4
183,496 158,585 15.7 37.1 37.5

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEEES D

REVENUE REVIEW (coNT'D)

Revenue from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom
collections and others segment increased by 12.4% to HK$362.3
million (2021: HK$322.3 million) as compared to the previous
year. During the year, we supplied for projects such as Baker Circle
Dover, Grand Victoria, Sheraton Hong Kong Hotel and The
Aperture.

Revenue from the kitchen collection and furniture segment
increased by 32.1% to HK$132.3 million (2021: HK$100.2
million) as compared to the previous year. During the year, we
supplied for projects such as La Marina.

The overall gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$183.5
million (2021: HK$158.6 million), representing an increase of
15.7% from the previous year due to a general improvement in site
progress leading to increased project deliveries. The overall gross
profit margin slightly decreased to 37.1% from 37.5%.

The Group'’s operating profit was HK$19.2 million (2021: HK$16.7
million), representing an increase of 14.4% from the prior year.
The amount of administrative expenses and distribution costs
increased by 10.7% to HK$164.9 million (2021: HK$149.0
million) which reflected our efforts in controlling selling expenses
despite resumption in selling activities. During the year, the Group
did not receive any government subsidies (2021: received HK$8.0
million).

Ab 55 [ B3 (52)

ERAS DAREREMIBREREFEEK
124%Z3623BABT(ZFE-—F 132238 A%
o) o FREE  BRIMALES 8L 48L - F
BEREBEEREASTEREMTR -

BREERRMITRBEREFIEKI2.1%E132.3
BABT(ZEZ—F 1 1002BABT)c TAF
B BN HESHERMES~R -

AEAZBAERNNISBSEABT(ZE=—F:
158.6 AABTT) » REFEK15.7% TR THRIH#
EEAREHZHIE RFIGM - BEEFERBHI7.5%
BMTHRE37 1%

REFAZZRERANANIL2BABT(ZE=Z—F:
16.7BHETL)  BEFEK14.4% - TRAZRSD
HRALEFH107% B 16498 ABT(ZEZ—F:
149.0BFET)  WRMT RMNEHEFTIMEN
BRTIRRRHHETFEINE D - TAEE » A&H
HEWBIFABAR(ZE=_—F : IKEW8.0E
BIT) ©
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to expand its business in Hong Kong and the
PRC while adopting a prudent financial management policy. The
current ratio and quick ratio are 2.0 (2021: 2.0) and 1.4 (2021: 1.2),
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents approximated HK$104.2
million as at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$103.0 million).

Inventories decreased to HK$115.4 million (2021: HK$142.5
million). The trade, retention and other receivables increased to
HK$154.7 million (2021: HK$99.0 million), while the trade and
other payables reduced to HK$34.4 million (2021: HK$36.0
million).

As at 31 March 2022, the gearing ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group is not applicable, the Group has a net cash
position (2021: 7.4%). The interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group reduced to HK$42.1 million (2021: HK$66.6 million) as at
31 March 2022.

Treasury Policy

Borrowings, cash and cash equivalents are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Euro (“Euro”). During the year,
the Group entered into certain forward contracts to buy Euro for
settlement of purchases. The management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

We seek to manage our cash flow and capital commitments
effectively to ensure that we have sufficient funds to meet our
existing and future cash requirements. We have not experienced
any difficulties in meeting our obligations as they become due.
Assets under charge include mortgaged property acquired. As at 31
March 2022, performance bonds of approximately HK$32.5
million (2021: HK$37.6 million) have been issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts. Save for the performance bonds
for projects, the Group has no other material financial
commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022.

Tt 55 [21 B3t

RHEERUSER
AERAHEXMFEVSZEERREREEBRT
Bzl RN BREN LR F H20(ZF
TF 20R14(ZFEZ—F 112)c FZEF ==
F=ZA=+—H8 HEeRIASENYWAN10428H
BT (ZEZ—F 103.08H8T) °

BHRELENSABABT(ZE=—F 1142588
FBIT) o RIUTIKFR  RIWTAR B 70 R B R RR G i &2
1547 BABL(ZFE=—F 199.08F8T) MK
AR REMRNARUE L ZE344BAET(ZF
Z—F 1360BABT) °

FZEZZE=A=1+—H0 ' BREHZ2USRK
W MURER 2 B AR R (IR R BLE N ER)
HTEA(ZEZ—F 1 74%) - REFAF=ZF==
F=A=+-HZEREBRRLEZERIBAER(Z
BEZ—F 666 BABRT) °

Tt 5 BUR

B NERASENPEELBET (BT REK
FIREDIHE TAFE  REATLETIiZH
BY  RARFULN RN - EEEBULEERE
FmE I 2 NCRBs o

RAR R

BINBNEREBRUSHREREAREXIE  BREAR
ZERESHFRITRARNAESER - BAEMREB
BOARREATARS EBEME M o FTIKHFE~
BEERBzBWBYL - FZE-_—_F=A=+—
B ANEAREFAHBARIEN25BHET(Z
B -F376BABT)ERNEYER - T8
“ZHEZA=+—8 BRI B zZBYRIEN 0 NER
ALEMEBAMSEIBR R o
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Management Discussion and Analysis EEEES D

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the international political conflicts, military
conflict in Europe and the COVID-19 Omicron pandemic will
continue to transform the global supply chain landscape, price
hikes in commodities and oil supply. International sanctions
against Russia, interest hikes in central banks, and inflationary
pressures on the worldwide economy threaten the financial and
operational stability of business and traders around the world than
they have ever seen for many years.

Given the world’s geopolitical environment is never stable, the
current uncertainties are unprecedented, mainly as geopolitics
affect policies on the supply chain, tourism, logistics and trade, the
downside risks in the global economy remain significant. In
addition, the world economy will struggle to recover from
COVID-19 pandemic outbreaks in 2022.

In the PRC, strict Omicron prevention and control measures in
major cities led to a GDP fall in the second quarter of 2022; it
might dampen GDP growth this year. In Hong Kong, anti-Omicron
restrictive measures led to a GDP fall in the first quarter of 2022.
The government data reveals that the private consumption
expenditure decreased 5.5% in real terms from a year earlier,
dampening consumer confidence and sentiments. Overall
investment expenditure declined by 8.4% in real terms as business
sentiment worsened. The uncertainties of a new wave of Omicron
epidemic and the world’s geopolitical environment remain a
challenge to Hong Kong’s economy. However, the Hong Kong
government indicated that inflation would be 2% this year. With
deteriorating export performance and dampened consumer
confidence in the first half-year of 2022, Hong Kong’s economic
recovery is cautiously optimistic and mild.

Given the current trends in the number of residential units sold for
the first quarter of 2022, we will keep a close eye on the residential
property market. The uncertainties as suggested above remain
challenging to our business as they are beyond our control.

In the near term, according to Rating and Valuation Department,
the forecast for housing completions in 2022 and 2023 are 22,850
and 21,850 units, respectively. Nevertheless, the Hong Kong
government’s direction in increasing housing supply is expected to
continue regardless of the change in administration in July 2022.
The making of the Northern Metropolis will provide
accommodation capacity in the long term.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

The government’s new round of the Consumption Voucher Scheme
2022, with a total value of $10,000 or $5,000 by instalments for
each eligible participant, along with the 2022 Employment Support
Scheme and Temporary Unemployment Relief Scheme, would
create customer demand in Hong Kong retail, catering and food
and beverage markets, that in turn, facilitate the recovery of Hong
Kong economy in the later of 2022.

Hong Kong reduced its economic growth forecast down to 1%—-2%
for the year from an earlier forecast of 2%-3.5% because of the
COVID-19 outbreak earlier this year, the potential COVID-19’s
sixth or seventh waves, the ever-changing international geopolitical
circumstances have caused price hikes in food, commodities and
oil, disruption of supply chain and logistics, the subsequent
inflationary pressures lead to higher interest rates, all these would
have a more significant impact and disruption on business and
trade than they have ever seen for many years.

The Group has evolved to sustain growth amid challenges brought
by the pandemic, and will continue to optimise structure to stay
robust and flexible in the market. We will cautiously explore new
growth opportunities in relevant business field, identify and acquire
suitable premises for self-use. We will continue to closely monitor
external factors such as geopolitical tensions, supply chain
disruptions and currency rates and adjust our strategies
accordingly.
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Directors’ Report 5%

The Board of Directors is pleased to submit their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 171 to 172.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 107 to 108.

Appropriations of profits and movements in the reserves of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in notes 28
and 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board declared and paid an interim dividend of HK0.5 cent
per share for the six months ended 30 September 2021 (six months
ended 30 September 2020: HKO0.5 cent per share) totalling
HK$3,003,000 (six months ended 30 September 2020:
HK$3,003,000).

The Board has resolved to recommend, at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 7 September 2022, a
final dividend of HK1 cent per share for the year ended 31 March
2022 (year ended 31 March 2021: HKO.5 cent per share) (the
“Final Dividend”), totalling HK$6,006,000 (year ended 31 March
2021: HK$3,003,000).

If it is duly approved by the members at the AGM, the Final
Dividend will be distributed to members, whose names appear on
the principal or branch register of members of the Company in the
Cayman Islands or Hong Kong respectively (collectively the
“Register of Members”) as at the close of business on 15 September
2022. The payment will be made on 12 October 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed as follows:

(@) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 2 September 2022 to 7
September 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
right to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (address will be changed
to 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong with effect from 15 August 2022) no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 1 September 2022.

(b)  For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for
the Final Dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed on 15 September 2022, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the Final Dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with Tricor Abacus
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong (address will be changed to 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong with effect
from 15 August 2022) no later than 4:30 p.m. on 14
September 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2022,
calculated under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to HK$58,840,000 (2021: HK$64,101,000). Under
Section 34 of the Companies Act (2022 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to
shareholders, provided that no distribution or dividend shall be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless
the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and
there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

At the beginning of the year, the Company indirectly held full
interest in an office property for investment purpose. The property
is located at 19/F, First Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The property is held on long lease.
During the year, the use of property was changed to self-
occupancy. Further details of the properties held for investment
purposes are set out in the note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details of bank loans and borrowings as at 31 March 2022 are
set out in the note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable or other purposes made by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$56,000 (2021: HK$30,130).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and/or
during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of
this report are kept at the Head Office in Hong Kong and available
for inspection during business hours.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 65, is the Chairman of the Board. He
is a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
possesses over 30 years of experience in trading of building
materials. He is responsible for the planning of the Group’s overall
strategies and the overall management of the Group. Mr. TSE is a
brother of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the
Company; a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman
of the Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the
Deputy Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 71, a founding member of the
Group, was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice Chairman
of the Company on 21 June 2012. He established his reputation in
the industry and has a wealth of experience in brand building, new
product development and structuring the management of the
Group. Mr. TSE is a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing
Director of the Company; and the father of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin,
the Deputy Managing Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

Executive Directors (cont’d)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 63, is the Managing Director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. He is a director of
twenty-seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over
30 years of experience in trading of building materials and is
responsible for the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also assists
in the strategic planning and management of the Group. Mr. TSE is
a brother of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board; a
cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 54, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2001. He is responsible for project sales. Mr. LAU
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist
College) in 1992 with a Bachelor’s Degree of Science.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 42, is the Deputy Managing Director
of the Company and joined the Group in 2004. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 8 September 2008
and is a director of twenty subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
graduated from University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s Degree of
Commerce. He is responsible for internal information technology
development, the launching of the furniture business and the
marketing of products distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE is a
nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the Company; and
a son of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 73, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972 with
Honours Bachelor’s Degree of Social Science in Economics. He
was appointed as a Director and general manager of Hongkong
Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry
Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He has been actively involved in garment
industry and IT business for the last few years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors (cont'd)

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 27 September 2004. He obtained a
Master Degree in Business Administration with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Education (Counselling &
Guidance) with University of Newcastle upon Tyne, a Second
Bachelor’s Degree of Law with Tsinghua University and a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. WAN is an independent non-
executive director of Plover Bay Technologies Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a
director of Jacob Walery Limited specialising in corporate
consultancy and training since 1 March 2007 while he is also
teaching with various universities and professional institutes.

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong, aged 77, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 29 November 2019. He is a Chartered
engineer, Chartered arbitrator, and a Barrister-at-Law in Hong Kong
and in England and Wales. He received his Bachelor of Science in
Engineering, Master of Science in Engineering, and Doctor of
Philosophy degrees from the University of Hong Kong in 1966,
1968 and 1982 respectively; a Professional Engineer degree from
the Columbia University in the City of New York in 1976; a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1980; a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University
of London in 1987; and a Master of Laws in Arbitration and
Dispute Resolution degree from the City University of Hong Kong
in 1994. Dr. LUK was a past President of the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers (2000-2001) and a member of the Building Ordinance
Appeal Tribunal in Hong Kong (1995-2010). Dr. Luk is a fellow of
the Institution of Structural Engineers, the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Chartered
Institution of Arbitrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators.
Currently, he is an adjunct professor of the Technological and
Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong, and Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics in the People’s Republic of China, an
Honorary Fellow of HKU School of Professional and Continuing
Education and the chairman of Asian Construction Management
Association.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

Senior management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 65, joined the Group in 1982.
Mr. AU is a sales director of project sales division. He possesses
over 30 years of experience in the building materials industry and
is responsible for project related sales and marketing activities.

Mr. LEE Ka Ming, Clement, aged 47, joined the Group in 1994. Mr.
LEE is a deputy general manager of project sales division. He
possesses over 20 years of experience in building materials industry
and is responsible for project sales.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts with Directors as disclosed herein,
no contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors, including Independent Non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment, which
constitutes a service contract, with the Company for a term of 12
months. They are subject to re-election by shareholders at annual
general meetings and at least once every three years on a rotation
basis in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. No Director has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and
Mr. WAN Sze Chung will retire at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. WONG Wah,
Dominic, Mr. WAN Sze Chung and Dr. LUK Wang Kwong are
Independent Non-executive Directors and were appointed for a
fixed term of one year.

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments, on a named basis, during the
year are set out in note 12(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence pursuant
to the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all of
its Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts. An insurance cover is in
place to protect Directors against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company has not operated any share option schemes during
the year ended 31 March 2022. As at 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2022, there was no outstanding share option of the
Company.

In addition, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at the
end of the year.
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DIRECTORS” MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no other transaction, arrangement or contract that is
significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company’s subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in
which a Director of the Company and the Director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and at the end of the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief
executives of the company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Directors’ interests

EERERSITHRAATARAASIEME
BRZEH 2R REXRO RESF 2N
%Rk

F-E-_F=A=+—H SEBRELTAERS
THARSBE2HKAA T T AR R LMK EA
(B X% R At 5B 5E XV ER) 2 B2 ~ <R
REHD  BERBIESRBHEEXAEXVIE7 RS
AWEHLALBAREBRAERZ AR L (B
R 2 N R#E - RARBIE 25 R HA S 545 56 352
ZNMEEZ2EILEMAER2NER XS  HREL
THANMFET AR LTETAZESHTIESRG 2
FRESTU (TFRES D) BTSRRI RKRA 2
NERABWMT :

EENE

Number of ordinary
shares interested

HENBENEERKE
Equity Percentage
Personal Corporate derivatives of share
Director 55 interests interests (share options) Total  capital issued
R&ETETIR HEXRITRA
N ¢ NEIEE: (M RRAR) Bit ZEA
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) BETE L (HET) - 37,197,294 - 37,197,294 6.19%
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2) R A (M 2) - 108,302,488 - 108,302,488 18.03%
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) BE=E AL (HHE3) - 43,659,542 - 43,659,542 7.27%
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2) BN AE (i 2) - 108,302,488 - 108,302,488 18.03%
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun X B St _ _ _ _ _
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic skt - - - - -
Mr. WAN Sze Chung BEBEAE - - - - -
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong FhRS L - - - - -

Note 1: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the
beneficiaries.

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Group
Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their family
are the beneficiaries.

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times
Limited. The spouse of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. He is deemed to have beneficial interest in the Company.

MiE1 @ ZZE A B R 49 1% B Fast Way Management Limited
BE - BIFEEERABBAZEA

MiE2 : ZEARA TR IEH Universal Star Group Limited 3
B BIEHEE  WAREERBREZRKERANZ
@A o

MEE3 @ ZE AN E AR 4 & B New Happy Times Limited

B PHELRECBBREIRKIANZHEA  BH
MR TFTAABPEERENE ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONT'D)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives
or their associates had, as at 31 March 2022, any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

At no time during the year, the Directors and chief executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) had
any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, its specified undertakings or its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Companies
Ordinance”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2022, the following persons (not being Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Personal
Name of shareholder BREEHRHE interest
MARE
Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited -
Ms. LIM Mee Hwa (Note) LIM Mee Hwa Zz % (Fff3F) 4,501,650
Mr. YEO Seng Chong (Note)  YEO Seng Chong £ 4 (Kt 3%) 500,000

Note: Ms. Lim owns 4,501,650 Shares directly in her own name and her husband
Mr. Yeo owns 500,000 Shares in his own name. Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, in
aggregate, own the entire shareholding in Yeoman Capital Management Pte
Ltd (“YCMPL") and therefore control YCMPL. The total shareholding in the
Company held by each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, comprised of direct
shareholding, deemed shareholding through spouse and fully-controlled
corporation, is 30,455,550. Each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares held beneficially and deemed to be
beneficially held.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any substantial shareholder (other than Directors of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2022.

FERRK

FZEZZFE=ZA=+—H ' U TAT(HFEESH
RABBRBITERAR) FARATRS RAEXRSH+H
BUTHREBIESRRARZMFE 36 ZNFE 2= 12MH
g F 2 MER AL

TARARG REXKRD 2HE
Percentage
Family Corporate of share
interest interest Total capital issued
HEAITIRA
L WRIREH Bit ZHBEDL
- 73,581,206 73,581,206 12.25%
500,000 25,453,900 30,455,550 5.07%
4,501,650 25,453,900 30,455,550 5.07%

ME : LimZTUHEB S ENEERE4501,650KRH > RE
XK Yeo L E LH B & & LHHE 500,000 BRAZ D © Lim &
+ & Yeo 564 & £ #5 Yeoman Capital Management Pte
Ltd ((YCMPLJ) #9 & AR > B X YCMPLE 1R HI#Y ©
HLimZtRYeo R EEBHFENARQARARNET (BE
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30,455,550 %  RIBIEHF KRG > LimZ LR Yeo sk
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Negotiator Consultants Limited

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022 in respect of the lease payment for warehouse rental of
approximately HK$2,774,000 paid to Negotiator Consultants
Limited (“NCL”) constitutes a continuing connected party
transaction. The transaction was entered into between NCL and E.
Bon Building Materials Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, for a term of one year commencing
from 1 April 2021 and expiring on 31 March 2022 (both days
inclusive) on 31 March 2021. NCL is a subsidiary of a company in
which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE
Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin have beneficial interests.
The determination of the lease payments followed the pricing
policies and guidelines set out in the continuing connected
transaction announcement dated 31 March 2021. On 29 October
2021, the connected relationship under this leasing transaction had
ceased. Full details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 October 2021.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter to the Board containing findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group as
above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Negotiator Consultants Limited
GEMSHRRMINARBEBE—"FT_-_F=A1
=+—HIEFERKLHE @ Negotiator Consultants
Limited ([NCLI) fF BRI 7RL9 2,774,000 8 T 2 %
EATRGMR-—AFEXELSRG T-E=—
FZA=1T—B NCLEXQXT£HKHE 2 =R FB
TEFAMBERLBTIRSE BB —FWA
—Eli_Zé E_F=A=+t—-HL(BEEER

C A E— $°NCL?§EEi§1¥ﬁ5£5‘E$~i§??ﬂ%5E
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group recognises that external events may affect the
environment in which the Group operates. The Group’s business is
managed by an experienced management team who have a close
involvement in the day-to-day running of the business, which
ensures that the Group is prepared for, and can react quickly by
adapting its business to, changes in the operating environment.
Further discussions on the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties
are provided throughout this annual report, particularly in
“Chairman’s Statement” (pages 7 to 8), “Management Discussion
and Analysis” (pages 9 to 15), “Risk Management and Internal
Control” (pages 52 to 57), “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” (pages 64 to 96) and “Financial Risk Management” (pages
138 to 145). The above discussions form part of this Directors’
Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, save as disclosed on page 33 in Corporate
Governance Report, as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied with the requirements under the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance, the SFO and the Cayman
Islands Companies Act.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a collaborative relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers. Details of which are
set out on pages 79 to 87 and form part of this Directors’ Report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2022, our workforce was recorded at 147
employees (2021: 149). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$72,100,000 (2021:
HK$57,330,000). Competitive packages are offered to attract,
retain and motivate competent individuals.

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and both the
Group’s and individual performances. The remuneration policy
and remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
members of the senior management of the Group are considered
by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with its Terms of
Reference. Details of Directors’” emoluments during the year are set
out on page 157. The Group does not have any share option
scheme for employees.

FRERRRAHERER
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REMUNERATION POLICY (coNT'D) FBR (2

Senior management remuneration BREEAREHH
For the year ended 31 March 2022, remuneration paid to members ®BZZZF-—_F=ZA=+—-HLFE XHFER
of the senior management is as follows: EEARZFHFMMT

Number of
Remuneration bands FrE4A 51 individuals

N

HK$0-HK$1,000,000 08 JTE 1,000,000 % 7T 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T ZE 1,500,000 % 7T 1
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS FEHNBERES
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to  TAFERN  AEHAFTEH/BERF 5 A REH
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows: REETMEILWT ¢
Purchases R E
The largest supplier BRI 15%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRI LI 53%
Revenue HEH
The largest customer BRER 1%
Five largest customers in aggregate BEREF LT 27%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders EE - FEEBRBKRAATHFEESHOHEARL
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the B8 &4TBRA5% WU £ 2 FMBRZER » X F LT
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major BZFEHNFREFFFHENE °

suppliers or customers disclosed above.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY B RBE
The Group endeavours to minimising pollution and protecting the  FRERAKDRFRARE - B EAERRRS - %

environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of FRBEZEFIE » LRI IFE - EXREBHTEBE
energy and waste. Details of which are set out on pages 73 to 79. 79T o

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY EEMSHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEHANEXENMNMBRFEZLHARR=RAGHE
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 190. HTFE190m -
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
the date of this report, it is confirmed that the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 9 to 15 and pages 64 to
96 respectively of the Annual Report. The business review forms
part of this Directors’ Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 July 2022
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Corporate Governance Report £UERRSE

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to
maintaining its high standard of corporate governance, and
continues to review and reinforce its corporate governance
measures. The Company believes that accountability and reporting
system with high transparency for the Company’s operation has
been in place. Disclosures could also be made timely and
accurately. At the same time, the rights of shareholders can be
treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an effective and responsible board of
directors (the “Board”), which is comprised of individuals with high
qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure that the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) maintain good
corporate governance practices and have comprehensive internal
control and risk management systems, so as to cope with the
Group’s development strategies and increase the shareholders’
value.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) published by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sets out the principles
of good corporate governance and provides two levels of
recommendations:

(@) code provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply,
but from which they may choose to deviate, provided that
they give considered reasons; and

(b) recommended best practices, with which issuers are

encouraged to comply, but which are provided for guidance
only.

Amendments to the CG Code (the “New CG Code”) came into
effect on 1 January 2022 and the requirements under the New CG
Code will apply to corporate governance reports for financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Corporate
Governance Report of the Company in the following financial year
and onward will be based on the New CG Code.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company has complied with all code provisions in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, except for the
following:

Under the code provision C.2.5, the Company should have an
internal audit function. Given the current scale of operations, the
Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board is
directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for the review of its effectiveness. The
Board will continue to review, at least annually, this arrangement
going forward in light of the evolving needs of the Group.
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COMPLIANCE OF MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules sets
a required standard against which Directors must measure their
conduct regarding transactions in securities of their listed
companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions.
Employees of the Group, who are likely possess Inside Information
(as defined under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the “SFQ”),
have been requested to comply with provisions no less exacting
than the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of
publication of this Annual Report, the Directors of the Company
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

For the terms of appointment of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, please refer to page 22. According to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), at each
annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Formal letters of appointment have been issued to all Directors
setting out all key terms and conditions of their appointment. Each
newly appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of
appointment.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Biographies of all Directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 19 to 21.

Except as disclosed in the Directors’ Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

The Board and Management

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of
the Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring
the performance of management, overseeing the management of
the Company’s relationship with shareholders, ensuring that a
framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable
risks to be assessed and managed, setting the Company’s values
and standards, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

When the Board delegates management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers of management with respect to the circumstances where
management is to report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The Company has formalised functions
reserved to the Board and the management respectively; and the
Board reviews those arrangements periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The management and staff of the Company ensure the successful
implementation of the strategies, business directions and policies
as determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business
principles and ethics, which are consistent with those expected by
the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors help to ensure that the
Board can make independent judgement efficiently and effectively.
They also take the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise.
They scrutinise the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitor performance
reporting. They make a positive contribution to and independent
judgement on the development of the Company’s strategies,
policies, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct through board meetings by bringing in
independent, constructive and informed comments. They form a
strong independent element on the Board.

The Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
professional qualification. Among them, some possess expertise in
accounting or financial management. They give the Board and
Board committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. Independent Non-
executive Directors attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the view of the shareholders of the
Company.

Each Independent Non-executive Director has submitted an annual
written confirmation to the Company confirming his independence
as regards each of the factors referred to in Rule 3.13(1) to (8) of
the Listing Rules. All Independent Non-executive Directors are
engaged by contract every year and are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association
and the Listing Rules. The Company considered that all
Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Directors’ responsibilities

All Directors devote sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs and have actively participated in the Board meetings to
discuss the overall strategies, business directions and policies of
the Group. Throughout the year, the Company held four regular
Board meetings and one general meeting. To ensure that Directors
could obtain all related information to make an informed decision
and to perform their duties and responsibilities, documents for the
Board meeting were supplied to Directors for their consideration
before the meeting according to the regulations set out in the
Listing Rules and code provisions of the CG Code.

The attendance of board meetings and general meeting(s) during
the year is set out on page 58.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors
were aware of any material uncertainty relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. As such, the Directors have
prepared the Company’s financial statements on a going concern
basis. Reporting responsibilities of external auditor on the financial
statements are set out in “Independent Auditor’s Report” (pages 97
to 106).

Board proceedings

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all
Directors to include matters in the agenda of regular Board
meetings. At least 14 days’ notices are given in respect of regular
Board meetings. For regular Board meetings, an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent, in full, to all Directors in a
timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of
board meeting. For all other Board meetings, Directors are given as
much notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
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Board proceedings (cont'd)

Management provides the Board and Board committees with
adequate and timely information which is accurate, clear,
complete and reliable to enable Directors to make informed
decisions on matters placed before them, and perform their duties
and responsibilities as directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable Directors to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before them for approval. In addition, the Board
and each Director have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management. All Directors have free access to
board papers and related materials. Board papers and related
materials are in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to
make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Queries
raised by Directors are provided with a prompt and full response.
Minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting are
kept by the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are
available for inspection by any Director.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and Board committees and the decisions reached. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment
and records respectively within a reasonable time after the Board
meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that good information
flow within the Board, Board policies, Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Moreover,
upon request from any Director, the Company provides separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist them to
perform their duties at the Company’s expense.

If a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical board meeting set up for that purpose and voted on by
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction. Independent Non-executive Directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material interests in the
transaction should be present at that board meeting. Directors’
concerned must abstain from voting on any Board resolution and
will not be counted in the quorum.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Board effectiveness

A formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for the
appointment of new directors. Newly appointed directors are
provided with briefing materials to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business, and are
fully aware of their responsibilities under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the
Company’s business and governance policies. In addition, an
orderly succession for appointments is maintained to ensure high
standard of corporate governance of the Company. Every Director
is subject to re-election by rotation at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years.

To ensure Directors’ contribution remains informed and relevant,
the Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training to Directors. In addition, the Company encourages
Directors and the senior management to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge,
skills and understanding of the business and markets in which the
Group operates. Directors are timely updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, as well as information related to the
Group’s business and operations, to ensure compliance, enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices and
enable them to discharge duties properly. This has involved various
forms of activities including attending seminars, reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business, director’s duties and
responsibilities.

The records of training of Directors received during the year is set
out on page 58.

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance

The Company has arranged an insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors and officers (as defined in the Listing
Rules) arising from corporate activities.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive” set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated roles
and are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry,
Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the Board. Mr.
TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for the
Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director has been clearly
defined and the written terms of reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(@) Providing leadership for the Board;

(b)  Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in
a timely manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary draws up and approves
the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf,
taking into account any matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda;

() Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

(g) Ensuring good corporate governance practices are in place
and procedures are established;

(h) Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs, giving each Director an
opportunity to express his views at Board meetings, taking the
lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company, encouraging Directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus;
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (coNT'D)

(i)

Holding meetings with Independent Non-executive Directors
annually without the presence of other Directors; and

Promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non-
executive Directors, and building constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board. His
responsibilities are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Providing leadership for the management;

Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s
strategies;

Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board;

Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to
enable the Board to monitor the performance of management;

Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with
its stakeholders;

Putting in place programmes for management development
and succession;

Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and
maintaining proper internal controls and systems as well as
disclosure controls and procedures; and

Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated
in writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is currently
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors. They
are:

Mr. WAN Sze Chung
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined
and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and function of
the Audit Committee are as follows:

(@) To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The audit committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

To develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The audit
committee should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);

To review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

To discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings, and review the statements concerning risk
management and internal control to be included in the annual
report;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, to
review and approve the annual internal audit plan, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

()

(q)

To review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

To review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

To report to the Board on the matters in the code provision of
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules;

To review arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

To consider other topics as defined by the Board.

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for corporate
governance functions as below:

(a)

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

To review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2021, to discuss the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
with management, and to review the annual budget for audit fees.
In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022 on 14 July 2022,
and proposed to the Board for their approval.

In addition, during the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies (including the Inside
Information Policy) and practices, reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, reviewed and monitored the Company’s code of
conduct and compliance manual, reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. During the year, the Audit Committee met
twice, full minutes of which are kept by the Company Secretary.
Draft and final versions of minutes of meetings are sent to all
committee members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review,
and related recommendations were adopted by the Board. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent
legal or other professional advice.

The attendance of committee members at Audit Committee
meetings during the year is set out on page 58.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the following external auditor’s
remuneration has been incurred by the Company:

External auditor SNEEAZ R
— Audit services — TR
— Non-audit services — FFERSE
Total Bit

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers,
external auditor of the Group, amounting to HK$1,770,000 were
primarily for audit services and those for non-audit services
amounted to HK$195,000, 9.9% of the total fees. The non-audit
services provided by the PricewaterhouseCoopers was tax
compliance services.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012. It
is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont’d)
The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(@) Review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) Identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) Assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

(d)  Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review
the Board and senior management of the Company. The Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
reviewed the board diversity policy, reviewed the time and
contribution from Directors, assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, made recommendations on
the appointment and reappointment of Directors at the 2021
annual general meeting having considered them having the
required character, integrity, independence (as appropriate to
Independent Non-executive Directors), professional knowledge
and experience to fulfil their role and to contribute to the Group,
and discussed the succession planning for the Company’s Board
and senior management.

In addition, the Committee continued to carry out the nomination
policy (including procedures, process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship). Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review.

The attendance of committee members at Nomination Committee
meetings during the year is set out on page 58.
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Nomination Committee (cont'd)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The members of Board possess diverse
competences, spanning business management, advisory and
monitoring, accounting and financial management, legal, brand
building, sales and marketing and I.T. development. The profile of
Directors is set out in Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 19 to 21.

The Board has adopted its own board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy aims to achieve
diversity of the Board through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience. Board appointments will
be based on objective criteria having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee of the
Company shall review the Board Diversity Policy as appropriate
and make recommendations on any proposed revisions to the
Board.

At present, there are 3 Independent Non-executive Directors in the
Board, accounting for over 1/3 of the total numbers of the Board.
They bring them with diverse academic and professional
qualifications and experience to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a)

To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors” and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for Non-executive Directors;

To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

To consult the Chairman and/or the chief executive about
their remuneration proposals for Executive Directors (except
the Chairman and/or the chief executive as appropriate). The
committee should have access to professional advice if
necessary; and

To consider other topics as defined by the Board.

EESCBRTHNZERAS &)

FHMERL (5)
FHERLTITHIIEE - HFAAANETS -
FHERL 2 AERRENT :

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

RAXNBEHESRSREREAR 2HFHBE
RZEM - R EIT H M BR 1R S E AL B E B
EZRF BESRHEN;

HANMEZ LIRS R BArma T & it e
EEE2HMEL

RMBPITEERSREEAR ZHMEGED
EFCRHEN - FHEBNBEXYAE
BRAESNARBEZST(BEERRIRL LR
FSHREEMRAT 2 EAIEE)

BRERTESZFHOESREZN

ZRERNBN ZFHH - P HEHE
AR 7 52 A A B A BRMY 2 F AR %A

25

BRNEH#EARTEERSREBEAAREM
EARARLUEREREBEMAN 2 IEE - U
REZEBESEAER B BRESEHF
R WEEARATRE T2

RITRHERNESTHAIMBREIEZRAX
ESMAR2BERE  UARZEZHSE
DX BRESENEZR -2 WEX
BENESEEY

BRENESFIEHEMAKREALT I ESE5EE
REHE

BATES(REFERSTHLEIN (WE

) 2HMBWIEATER STHEH &
R2FABEHTLEL(MERE) &

ZREAMBESSUE 2R -

49



50

Corporate Governance Report &I EEHRSE
BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)
Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

The remuneration policy of the Group (including Directors) is set
out on pages 30 to 31. Details of remuneration payable to the
senior management, by band, are set out on page 31.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management of the Company. The
Committee also reviewed and determined the policy for the
remuneration of Executive Directors; assessed their performance
and approved the terms of service contracts of Directors. No
Director had participated in the determination of his or her own
remuneration.

The attendance of committee members at Remuneration
Committee meetings during the year is set out on page 58.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary of the Company is approved by the Board.

Our Company Secretary is Mr. YU Chi Wah. He is also the Chief
Financial Officer and is employed on a full-time basis. During the
year, he had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our
Company Secretary reports to the Board Chairman, co-ordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

During the year, Board and Board committee meeting agenda and
accompanying board papers and minutes were provided by the
Company Secretary on behalf of the Chairman of the Board and
board committee chairmen. Furthermore, all Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
good information flow within the Board, Board policies, Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.
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BUSINESS MODEL

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The Company’s subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the importing, wholesale, retail and installation of
architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections
and furniture and provision of interior design services, project and
contract management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The objective of the Group is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. In addition, the
Group commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

Founded over four decades ago, the Group has established
reputation and gained trust from major contractors, property
developers and dealers. The Group also runs retail outlets and
showrooms.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group endeavours to generate sustainable return to
shareholders through:

(@) Leveraging our core competencies in products and services to
generate profits;

(b) Maintaining collaborative relationships with staff members,
customers and suppliers; and

(c) Adopting a prudent financial management policy at all times.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board is also
responsible for the risk management and internal control system
and reviewing their adequacy and effectiveness.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Process of risk management and internal control systems
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The Process of
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Internal controls encompass a set of rules, policies, and procedures
that the Group implements to provide reasonable assurance that:

(@) The Group financial reports are reliable;
(b) The Group operations are effective and efficient; and
(c) The Group activities comply with applicable laws and

regulations. The Board, management, and other personnel are
responsible for the internal control system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd)
The key components of the Group’s internal control structure are
as follows:
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Control Environment

Establishing a foundation for monitoring internal control begins
with an effective tone at the top of the organisation. The reason
of this is so important that management’s attitude regarding
monitoring will determine the selection of evaluators and the
approach to monitoring. The tone set by the management will
influence the way staff members conduct monitoring activities.
In turn, the Board will influence and guide how management
applies and conducts monitoring.
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Control Activities
The internal control of the Group includes the following areas:

e Integrity and ethics

e  Commitment to competence

e Board of Directors and Audit Committee participation
e Management philosophy and operating style

e Organisational structure

e Assignment of authority and responsibility

e Human resource policies and practices
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d)
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Information and Communication

The Group’s risk management structure is shown as below:
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The Board has the overall responsibility in ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains robust and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls
and compliance controls.

The management is the decision-making body of the risk
management control system. It comprises members from
various functions of the Group so as to provide holistic
coverage of the Group as a whole.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
risk during their day-to-day operations. They operate in
accordance with the clearly defined procedures,
responsibilities and limits of authority. They identify and assess
risk associated with their operations and report to the
management for review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL MBS B K AR (50

(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd) REERERABRERENTRE (&)

Monitoring

Monitoring of internal control is performed through application
of both on-going evaluations and separate evaluations. These
evaluations ascertain whether other components of internal
control continue to function as designed and intended. In
addition, these evaluations facilitate identification of internal
control deficiencies and communicate them to appropriate
officials responsible for taking corrective actions. More serious
deficiencies are communicated to higher levels of management
and to the Board of Directors when appropriate.

B
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Risk Assessment

Business risks change over time. The internal control system
needs to be capable of determining that the controls in place
are relevant and effective in addressing new risks. A monitoring
process must be capable of addressing the need for revisions in
the design of controls based on changing risk.

Effective internal control systems must be capable of containing
risks at an acceptable level to ensure effective and efficient
operations on an on-going basis. Thus, continuous feeding of
information and communication help monitoring the changes
and reaction.

By the use of the modern I.T. system to record, maintain and
produce outputs of accurate, complete, and timely information,
the Board and management team can:

(@) Evaluate the risks associated with the updated mode of
collecting, storing, and reporting data (e.g. recording the
sale of merchandise, updating a customer’s address,
preparing a report on sales by product);

(b) Design specific control procedures that help control the
risks applicable to the new design; and

(c) Ensure accountants are familiar with .T. capabilities and
risks, and recognise the opportunities that the I.T. system
provides to prevent, detect, and correct errors and
irregularities as the business events are executed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d)
Risk assessment identifies and analyses the relevant risks associated
with the Group’s objectives. It forms the basis for determining what
risks need to be controlled and the controls required to manage
them. Our head of risk management has periodic meetings with
directors and the management team to oversee and discuss the
proper operating style with each other.

Directors and the management team will then make decision and
delegate to each department for execution. Through daily
communication and information gathered, Directors and
management team will be able to monitor the daily operation and
risks that might occur, thus be able to prevent or minimise them. It
also makes sure operations are in compliance with laws, rules, and
regulations. At the same time, each department’s missions and
goals are achieved.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company recognises its disclosure obligation under the SFO
and the Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The Company
has included in its staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential information including Inside
Information (as defined under the SFO) in order to make sure
appropriate handling and dissemination of Inside Information is in
place.

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2022

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse range
of policies and procedures, including: conducting reviews of actual
performance, reviewing of performance reports, checking
information processing in transactions, performing physical
controls, analysing performance indicators and dividing and
segregating duties amongst different people. These can help the
Group ensure proper internal control is in place across
departments/divisions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (cont'd)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, including financial
controls, operational controls and compliance controls. During the
year, the Audit Committee conducted an annual review to consider
and discuss the risk management and internal control systems
(including but not limited to, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function) and
reported the same to the Board. The Board conducted an annual
review to consider environment, social and governance performance
and reporting.

During the year, the Company did not have an internal audit
department; details of which are set out on page 33. The Board
reviewed the scope and quality of management’s on-going
monitoring of systems of risks and the internal controls, examined
the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results
to the Board and Board committees. Based on the review, save as
disclosed under the section “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in
the Directors’ Report, the Board considers that there is no
significant change in the nature and extent of risks and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment since the last annual review. The Board
considered that the systems of risk management and internal
control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 were
effective and adequate.

Based on the internal financial controls, half-yearly financial
reporting and timely updates on Listing Rules requirements, the
Group’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are considered by the Board as effective.
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETING, BOARD

COMMITTEE MEETING AND ANNUAL GENERAL

MEETING AND TRAINING RECORDS

=®
=

The attendance of Directors at Board and Board committee
meetings, the annual general meeting and training records for the

year ended 31 March 2022 is as follows:

Director Bz

Executive Directors iy

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry i it

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert B ELE

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony HFERE

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin BNALE

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun NEHRE
Independent Non-executive Directors By 7ES
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BEE

Mr. WAN Sze Chung BRELLE

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong (Y che
Notes:

A:  Attending seminars, conference, forums and/or trainings
B: Reading newspapers, journals and/or updates

Board
22

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Audit
Committee
TRERS

212
212
212

It is the Company’s policy to have open communication and
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is a
key means to enhance corporate governance standard.
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based on the
information disclosed and provide feedback to the Company.
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with its
financial conditions, are disclosed in this report and the Company’s

website at www.ebon.com.hk.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Shareholders’” Communication Policy

The Board has adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy*
aiming to provide the Company’s shareholders, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, so that Shareholders are able to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them and
the investment community to engage actively with the Company.

To achieve this, the Company has established a number of
channels to maintain an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders
and the investment community. The Company is committed to
providing information to Shareholders and the investment
community mainly through the Company’s financial reports
(interim and annual reports), annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as making
available all corporate communications on the Company’s website
at www.ebon.com.hk. The Shareholders” Communication Policy is
reviewed annually to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with
the prevailing regulatory and other requirements. Effective and
timely dissemination of information to Shareholders and the
investment community shall be ensured at all times.

* For the purpose of this Policy, reference to the investment community is
intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as analysis
reporting and analysis the Company’s performance.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

(@) Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar. Please refer to
pages 4 to 5 of this Annual Report for the address of the
Company’s principal and branch share registrars.

(b) Shareholders and the investment community may at any
reasonable time make a request for the Company’s
information, send their written enquiries and concerns to the
Board to the extent such information is publicly available.
Such requests, enquiries and concerns shall be addressed to
the Company Secretary of the Company at its Head Office as
follows:

The Company Secretary
16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conT'D)

General Meetings

All registered shareholders shall receive either notice of the annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting (together the
“Meeting”) or equivalent notification letter by post or by electronic
means. The notice of the Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions
proposed and a proxy form. All shareholders, whose shares are
registered in the register of members, are entitled to attend the
Meeting. Shareholders who cannot attend the Meeting can appoint
their proxies or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies by
completing the proxy form enclosed with the notice of the meeting
and returning it to the Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, all votes
of shareholders at the Meeting will be taken by poll.

Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with the notice
of the Meeting, have been enclosed with a circular despatched to
the shareholders. The procedures are read out at the Meeting by
the chairman of the meeting so as to make sure shareholders are
familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll. The
Company arranges to address questions from shareholders in the
Meeting. In addition, separate resolutions for each substantially
separated issues will be proposed to the Meeting for the approval
of shareholders.

General meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal venue for
shareholders to meet and exchange views on the Company’s
business with the Directors and the management. An annual
general meeting is an annual significant event for shareholders and
the Board to exchange constructive opinions. All Directors
(including the Chairman of the Board) shall attend the annual
general meeting. Apart from attending the annual general meeting,
the Chairman of the Board shall arrange the chairmen of each
Board Committee to attend and answer questions at the annual
general meeting. The Company’s auditor shall also attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out when considering any payment of a dividend, the
Board shall take into account of (i) the profitability of the Group for
the financial year; (ii) the Group’s general financial condition
supporting its normal operations; (iii) the Group’s actual and
expected business performance; (iv) the Group’s overall results of
operation, financial performance and liquidity position; (v) the
Group’s expected capital commitments, future cash requirements
and future business development plans and prospects such as
market conditions; (vi) retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group; (vii) the
general economic conditions, business cycles of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and (viii) any other factors that the Board considers
relevant and appropriate. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. The Company has only one class of shares and the Articles of
Association of the Company set out the rights of our
shareholders.

2. Shareholders have right to receive corporate communications
issued by the Company.

3. Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Abacus Limited
(“Tricor”) may notify the Company from time to time through
Tricor if they wish to receive our corporate communications.

4. Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive background
information in a timely manner concerning the matters to be
decided at general meetings and they are well informed of the
rules including the voting procedures that govern general
meetings.

5.  Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules prescribed
by the Stock Exchange from time to time, shareholders have
right to participate and vote in general meetings. Any
shareholder not attending a general meeting can give proxy to
vote on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy are sent to shareholders
of the Company together with the notice of meeting.

6.  Shareholders have right to raise questions at general meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (conT'D)

7.

10.

11.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may request the Board, through the Company
Secretary, to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the annual general meeting will be taken by
poll. The chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder present in
person or by proxy will have one vote for every share held. A
shareholder who is a corporation will be present in person if
a duly authorised representative of such shareholder is present
at the meeting. A shareholder present in person or by proxy
who is entitled to more than one vote does not have to use all
his or her votes or to cast all his or her votes the same way.
The result of the poll shall be deemed to be a resolution of
the meeting. After the closure of a general meeting, the poll
results will be published on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key corporate
governance decisions. Sufficient time is allowed for
shareholders to consider the candidates being nominated
before the general meetings.

The Company ensures that votes cast are properly counted
and recorded. Voting results are verified by independent
scrutineers and announced in a timely manner after the
closure of general meeting and posted on the Company’s and
HKEXnews websites.

Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting as required
by the Listing Rules.

=®
=

B R F ()

10.

11.

TEEERY ABEMH R T AL FREKR
SREZANAYRRARD T +0—2BE
ER AR PEREZLBTREEIARS

REELHANE13.394) % BRETRFEAF
R FEEARRAMTABREFRFIT o K&
FRELESWFBRNIHEAUABREAXNRRZF
WEF - BREN  FHHEAZTRZERRE
BzBERE SFE—RERONTER-—F-
HREAAARHABHEXNERRERKIEE » N
ZRABHEAEESLE - EFHERBRZ
ERRKEFEHTREL —E2REBNTELR
LERENRAER AR TEE L IIREN -
UBREFRNRRZERBEEA NS Lz —IN
RUR - RELREBETREARSERERERT
R\ A M Ihwww.ebon.com.hk & BX XX Fr i 52 5

™ 5 www.hkexnews.hk ©

AARABMBRESSETELLERETZR
T TRRAKRSE  RE2BRRNEERR
RECESQHABREA °

AABAHREFYFIRIUERIERK - RRE
ERAWVBEREARK  ATRERSTER
BENTARNBRBKRRAKESMIEAHRER

REFELHANNE  EEXXZPHRBEEAN
HZBRERFAEBRBRERS A RRIUER

FRE o

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22


http://www.ebon.com.hk
http://www.hkexnews.hk
http://www.ebon.com.hk
http://www.hkexnews.hk

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (cONT'D)

Proposing a person for election as a Director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at any general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge a notice, signed by the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed), and a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his willingness to be elected (together the
“Notices”) at the Head Office or at the Registration Office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such Notices
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the Notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgement of such
Notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association or
the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to put
forward new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to put forward a new resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association (the “Memorandum
of Association”) and Articles of Association, in both English
and Chinese, are available on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at www.hkexnews.
hk. There was no significant change to the Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2022. In order to (i) bring the Articles of
Association in line with the relevant requirements of the applicable
laws of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and the Companies
Ordinance; and (ii) make other consequential and housekeeping
amendments, the Board proposes to seek approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to amend
the existing Articles of Association by way of adoption of the
second amended and restated Articles of Association (the “New
Articles of Association”) in substitution for, and to the exclusion of,
the existing Articles of Association. Please refer to the circular of
the Company dated 28 July 2022 for further details of the changes
to the existing Articles of Association to be brought about by the
adoption of the New Articles of Association.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report ¥ * £ 2 RER RS

OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It
provides an annual summary of the Group’s environmental and
social performance for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.
For corporate governance, please refer to pages 33 to 63.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report aims to provide a balanced representation of the
Group’s performance in the environmental and social (employment
and labour practices, operating practices and community
involvement) aspects and covers the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong. The Group will expand the scope of disclosures when the
data collection system is better established.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong:
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Note: Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our operations in Hong Kong
only. Our Hong Kong operations represent the core of all of our operations,
contributing over 90% of our Group's turnover in the financial year ended 31
March 2022.
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ASSURANCE

This Report has been independently verified by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, with the scope and basis of the
verification set out in the Verification Statement of this Report.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has delegated the environmental and social performance
to an ESG workgroup (“ESG Workgroup”) which comprises of a
director of the Company. The Workgroup translates the Board’s
vision into execution, gathers and analyses data collected from
various departments and reports back to the Board. The Board has
the overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability performance
and ESG reporting. Details of how the Board and ESG Workgroup
collaborate are set out on page 67. This Report was approved by
the Board on 29 June 2022.

VISION

Sustainability is a core part of values of E. Bon. The Group
envisions a community being knowledgeable and responsible in
their daily life and inspires others to do the same; and therefore
commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

STRATEGY

When we execute business strategies, our sustainability vision
enables us to take account of our responsibility to the environment
and society in general. Areas such as occupational health and
safety, product responsibility and operating compliance are
identified and considered relevant to the Group by the Board. The
Group, through the ESG Workgroup, seeks to formulate policies
and approaches in order to address these areas.
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POLICY

At E. Bon, sustainability is embedded in our business operations
that create sustainable value with its stakeholders in economic,
environmental and social dimensions. The Group has developed a
dedicated sustainability policy which directs its operations towards
the best practice in areas such as business growth, environmental
protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community investment. The sustainability policy commits the
Group to:

*  Meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on
sustainability issues;

e Pursuing good practices of sustainability in its operations;

e Implementing policies relating to business growth,
environmental protection, workplace quality, operating
practices and community investment;

e Encouraging our staff to be proactive in sustainability issues;

*  Promoting sustainability awareness along its value chain;

e Engaging our stakeholders in the sustainability process; and

*  Monitoring and improving the sustainability performance.

BR
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APPROACH

Implementation and Governance Structure

The Group adopts both top-down and bottom-up approaches to
manage sustainability risks. The implementation and governance
structure allows the Group to communicate concerns and solutions
related to sustainability risks effectively.

Outcome

B3

Input
EON

T

KR ERRM
AEARMXAE LM TRA T M EHNGENER
TRESARNR - XERERRMEFARAEEE
B RE SRR ERK A XNRTETRBER
VE X

Board of Director

Exg

Ultimate responsible body
BREEHE
Vision Result/Risk
RS l ‘I‘ - mR

ESG Workgroup
R HERERTHEA

Governance body

——

EAEE
Strategy Result/Risk
I | T 2 B
Management
EIEE
Decision-making body
REHAE
Policy ‘l‘ Result (e.g. KPI)/Risk
BE 1 #X (DI ERERIER) AR

Department/
Function Heads

BP9, BEEEE
Risk owners

REBREEA

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability performance and ESG reporting. The Board sets out
the sustainability vision of the Group and has delegated its
execution and monitoring to an ESG workgroup which comprises
of a director of the Company. The Board reviews and provides final
approval for the sustainability approach, strategy and performance
at least once a year.

The ESG Workgroup is pivotal to the success of ESG management:
it lays down sustainability strategies based on the Board’s vision,
determines material aspects with reference to stakeholders’
responses, gathers information from departments and functional
heads and conducts analyses, directly reports back to the Board on
the Group’s performance and its recommendations.

Stakeholders
&

ESCNFAEANTRESARRAURTE - &
REBLHRABEERE -ES2RHAEANT
BFERRES  ARERTREBZERTHER 42
RERTHEA  ZARABE-BARRAES - NT
ARFSARNGH RERXRI EB28FELR
WK REHEE

R e REBTHRARNE HL2REAEER
IHXE HREES2HNESFIETEEARE
B ASERHENRBREECERZE @ @EHBIIR
RETEWEREHETON  EERES2RE
REAMRI KB HEI -
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Implementation and Governance Structure (cont'd)

The management is the decision-making body of environmental
and social performance. It comprises members from various
functions of the Group to ensure that the Group’s policies are
working towards the best practice in areas such as business growth,
environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practices and community investment.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
sustainability risks during their day-to-day operations. They identify
key performance indicators (KPIs) associated with their operations,
monitor and report to the management. In addition, as risk owners,
they identify and assess sustainability risks and report to the
management for review.

Stakeholder Engagement

The expectation of stakeholders is evolving and so as our
sustainability strategy. The Group regularly engages with
stakeholders in order to keep our sustainability strategy relevant to
stakeholders and our business.

The Group determines its sustainability strategy through a
systematic process including:

e Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests
e Engage — Interact with stakeholders

e Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

o Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

Tt ()

KHER BIARM (£2)
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FHBBSESN  flIlbFEK - RERF - 2R
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R R FEATFSERRE  ARETFEERERL
e

BFESS

FHENHRETHER » RNV AFERKRERBER
B AR - AEAEHSHENERD - UER]
BRI S R R RIS S0 E R NML S -
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont’d)

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests

During the year, the ESG Workgroup took into consideration of
current course of business and refined the sampling of stakeholders.
Findings of the ESG Workgroup were submitted to the Board for
discussions and actions where necessary.

Engage — Interact with stakeholders

We have maintained various communication channels to interact
with stakeholder groups. This allows us to promptly understand
and address their concerns more quickly. Set out below are major
daily communication channels:

Key internal stakeholders
EBRHBHHE

Staff members Board of Directors Suppliers
BT g HAER

¢ Daily communications * Meetings ¢ Daily communications
B ®ill =key bl

o Staff activities * Meetings

ance appraisals

Other stakeholders
Hip 5 &

Shareholders Government
BRR and regulatory
organisations

TR EEE AL

e Corporate website

seminars
&

/

) . 4~
Y ;’);u-»»f 2]
. /

2200 ppeng aheo

g
AT

T ()

B ESS (%)

it R — BB E R EE 0 Fa

THER  HE - 2 REATFALERLGFMLS
iz MO EMSE - 5 HoRERTHEAN
MRERCEXTFES2UMITIEHELERRE
78 -

25— 5/ ELY
BMNBEIEMAERESTRANGHEHARIEE
o WWRERNRETHHDLEEMFEERINS
Be N AEEHEFEDBRE :

Key external stakeholders
EBIPHOE

Customers N
L I
i |

Non-government
organisations

and community
FBFARRHEE

e Cor e website

= Comimunity services

AR
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont'd)

In addition, we regularly carry out materiality assessment to
determine important issues to both internal and external
stakeholders of the Group. It is an on-going process as material
issues may change over time. Based on the results obtained in the
last engagement cycle and the management’s insights, the ESG
Workgroup identified 13 material topics which would have a direct
or indirect impact on the Group’s ability to create, preserve or
erode economic, environmental and social value of itself, its
stakeholders and society at large. The Workgroup asked
stakeholders to indicate topics that they considered the Group
should give priority. This process enables us to categorise various
groups of stakeholders into an engagement matrix: (1) engage, (2)
communicate and (3) inform stakeholders.

BFHrESS (&)

25— S E TR (%)

BEoh - BATEBHATEEZM VM - BEXNREANIIEEHEIBEZNIL
B BTEAWBTREENEEL  HERHIHENFEHT - REL—
N EFRRENERNREERNAE TR Lo RERTFHEACHTE
TEANERNA  ZEWBREESRAEZWIAERAE - RESAHIHHE
BE HEMEDEZEEMNER MERESMERD - THRAERE
BEEBREANFRAMZRELEROIE - ZLRERINEBEE RS
BEFEBA-NISEEEFE ()55 QXRRO)A2FEHE -

T ()

Review last engagement
cycle results

B L ESRBRNER

Link to business significance
based on management insights

RIBEERERBRE
HEBHERY

Identify material topics on
sustainability
EIREST (A0 PN £

Engage stakeholders to
prioritise

AROEREEERT

Analyse engagement
findings

SMBRER

Formulate engagement
matrix

=S RE M E
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APPROACH (coNT'D) Tt (&)

B &ESS5 (£)

25— 54 EL (£)

ERXSE5RASF Rl Ze25@#FE R &
ZERARMEZRIMVIRBREZ KT -

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont’d)

In this engagement cycle, concerns on occupational safety and
health, product responsibility, operating compliance and financial
performance are highlighted.

Environment B

High concern
1 Energy efficiency &

Al BRSNS
FREDE greenhouse gas emissions
REIR N KR =R AR B
2 Use of other major materials

" Hth T EEREM

—

(<5} 3 Climate resilience
% BIRRS
2 i
g&

< 4 q q

B i\: Economic &7 Social #&

= i’L‘I 06 be 4 Financial performance 6 Staff retention and
™ 9 8 BIRERE development

o] 6 . . BIRERERE
Y 5 Operating compliance

1% 1 4 SEARE 7 Occupational safety
L n and health

2 12 10 Customer privacy BEnleRE
13 BFALE

Low concern

11 Procurement practices

— High concern R

8 Product responsibility

EREE

9 Customer satisfaction

W 3 sk, 2
HEE Internal Stakeholders FEBE 12 Research & development BFEMEE
o o
F— i 13 Local community involvement
B E HESR

Top priority BEE#®

., Financial performance
0% prmzem

Product responsibility
o, 27%)
20% S
200 Energy efficiency & greenhouse gas emissions
° BEIRE KR E RS HEA
Customer satisfaction
i ZRREE

[
407% . Occupational safety and health
W RERRE

The assessment results were discussed and validated by the
management of the Group. The Group has decided to continue its
efforts on people issues where the Group has a relatively high
sustainability impact.

AEFAEEREWIERBIEITHER - REFRE
BEFOLEXRTITAINIE IR TR
EARERANTHERREBENRS
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

During the year, the Group obtained stakeholders” priorities to
work on over the coming year:

e Continue policy enhancement

> Review our current policies on major ESG subject areas
of staff safety and health, product quality and business
ethics

> Complete the collection of data in order to make
comparisons feasible

e Increase disclosure coverage

> Increase the disclosure in key performance indicators
(KPI) where material

Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

The management is responsible to review the stakeholder
engagement process to ensure a sufficient coverage of stakeholders
and issues. Feedback of publication of ESG report is also included
in the evaluation process.

SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING

The Group adopted Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules as the
sustainability measurement framework. It involves measuring
sustainability performance and setting targets in quantitative
manner. The ESG Workgroup regularly measure, record and
analyse key performance indicators (KPls) for the Board’s
discussion and establishment of improvement plans.

The Group has set a reduction target of 5% in total greenhouse gas
(GHG) emission, non-hazardous waste disposal, total energy use
and water consumption from the performance recorded for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Baseline”) by the year ending 31
March 2024.

Tt ()
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group endeavours to minimise pollution and protect the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. We first implement business activities for which
we bear responsibility and address the environmental issues by
integrating environment considerations in our business. We create
environmental awareness amongst our staff members and
whenever possible and practical to do so. We aim to contribute to
the sustainable future and be in harmony with the global
environment.

A1 Emissions

Our electricity consumption accounts for a major part of its GHG
emissions, with local transport contributing less than 5% of the
total GHG emission. Measures aimed at improving energy
efficiency are outlined on page 75.

Deliveries to the same district are gathered in bundles to minimise
travel routes, hence reduce the use of petrol and emissions to air.
In addition, we encourage our staff to use public transport; for
those that are not accessible by public transport means, to carpool
when travelling on business. Discharges to water are made through
public sewages system. There was no discharge to water and/or
land. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to air
emissions during the year. The Group has set to reduce total GHG
emissions per employee by 5% by 2024 from the Baseline.

The Group pays attention to hazardous waste such as e-waste. We
have implemented plans to reduce the quantity of e-waste as
outlined on page 77. Disposal of hazardous waste is conducted
safely in accordance to relevant regulations. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to hazardous waste handling
during the year.

78

REARNDBSREEREZRR  BEIRERAR
B BOERERREERMNRFFEL -2 -
BNEEURREZSERTHLES - AEELE
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KRR TS 7570 o

XNZHEBXENRNEFLE  AREFEEE
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ENVIRONMENT (CONT'D) RIE (%)

A1 Emissions (cont'd) ATHERRY (£2)

Non-hazardous waste is sorted in accordance with the possibility FTEEFYWUIER | WATEEERNIEKS 3 o FAF
of re-use. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to E & AEAALEZFEXRLTERAVLENRIE o &
non-hazardous waste handling during the year. The Group has set &SRB XE-—"FT_NFEEERANTEREY
to reduce non-hazardous waste disposal per employee by 5% by 4#EB2MNEELFE D 5% o

2024 from the Baseline.

Total air emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) BSHMEE GEE 1) () 0.005 0.005
NOx (tonnes) KEALY) () 0.004 0.004
SOx (tonnes) &tk 4 (i) 0.000 0.000
Particulate matter (tonnes) B () 0.000 0.000

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BESAHREEGCEE1R2)

(CO,e tonnes) (ZEfiHEan) 510.268 559.695
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (CO,e tonnes) HEHKRGCER 1) (ZEhmEEn) 14.817 14.859
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (COze tonnes) BEHERGEE2) (ZE4HRYEnm) 495.451 544.837
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per floor area B {r#EEAR A EEHEK GEE?2)

(CO,e tonnes/m?) (ZE RN EM FE5K) 0.054 0.067
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per employee  S#kE R MAERK CEE?2)

(CO,e tonnes/employee) (ZEhmYErm ER) 3.697 4.066
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BUEEERNHREE CEE1KR2)

per floor area (CO,e tonnes/m?) (ZEARY SR F5K) 0.055 0.069
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BEEANHHREE CEE1R2)

per employee (CO,e tonnes/employee) (ZEhmYEN BR) 3.808 4.177

Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes)! BERAYFELE ()

Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) TEEFW=4 L& () 8.554 7.830
Total non-hazardous waste produced BURHEBERATELTERFNEE

per floor area (tonnes/m?) (M, E75K) 0.001 0.001
Total non-hazardous waste produced BERAMFELTERAYEE
per employee (tonnes/employee) (R 3R ) 0.064 0.058
! Disposal of hazardous waste is negligible. ' BERFNNEBHTRE -
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources

Electricity

We have been phasing out old air-conditioners by energy-saving
ones. Indoor temperature remains at 23°C-25°C.

Besides, old halogen lamps in shops have also been gradually
replaced by LED spotlights. It consumes less energy, helps lower
the indoor temperature (which requires less air-conditioning) but
maintains approximate brightness. We are planning to phase out
fluorescent lightings from T8 to T5 which consumes less energy.
The Group has set to reduce total energy use per employee by 5%
by 2024 from the Baseline.

Our promotional light boxes go automatically off from midnight to
morning to reduce energy consumption.

IRIE (%)

A2 BREH

B

BAEEZL AT IR EMEATEZ B - EX
BE4EFT 23°CE25°Ce

o EHTFNIER AR REELSEBRALEDRY
T o LEDRKXITHER VR B TREZNEE
(ADFAZRE) - HELEBFHEBENRE - RATEITRIZE
SRERBEDRRMN TS ERITER T8 KT o A&
BAEeitda—S—_NEREERANERFRALE
MEFEL R 5% ©

BNWERTHETFREFELBFRA - LURD8E
FOHFE
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources (cont’d)

Water

Water consumed is for hygienic purpose. Labels of “treasure every
drop” are posted at prominent place next to taps to encourage staff
members to minimise the use of water. We plan to replace old taps
with sensor-type and/or add flow regulators to control water flow
when feasible. As a supplier of home fittings, we provide a range of
products with green features (eco-sensor, flow regulator, smart
green design) to the market. The Group has set to reduce total
water consumption per employee by 5% by 2024 from the

IR (50)

A2 BRER (£)

7k

ERAAKDAEIERE - KELSUERNVNE
WETBEEAEINE EMAIRER AKX -
BANT R Bk LB BRI R AL - B
FOTHBERATABERERTEEFKRE ER
KEREHNE > BB mHHAES LR~ R
RERIEE - MEBRATEE - TEIMMRIZ) - AKHE
HHE—F-_NEEESERANSEKENEEL
B 5% o

Baseline.

Total energy consumption (MWh) BOREEE CREA) 774117 855.288
Total direct energy consumption (MWh)? EEEREEE CKREAT)? 51.875 50.215
Total direct energy consumption SUSEERNEZEREEE

per floor area (MWh/m?) kB F75XK) 0.006 0.006
Total direct energy consumption EERANEEEREEE

per employee (MWh/employee) EREE, BR) 0.387 0.375
Total indirect energy consumption (MWh)  HE#ESREEE KR 722.241 805.073
Total indirect energy consumption BUMEERNEZEEREEE

per floor area (MWh/m?) (KRB, FFHK) 0.078 0.100
Total indirect energy consumption ERRANRZEEREES

per employee (MWh/employee) GkERBR) 5.390 6.008

Water consumption (m?) KB (ZFHXK) 976.645 1,065.473

Water consumption per floor area (m*/m?) BUMEERNEKE
(L FRKFFHK) 0.106 0.132
Water consumption per employee BREANEKEIHX BR)
(m*/employee) 7.288 7.951

Total packaging material (tonnes) BEMEEE (M) 2.765 2.877

Total packaging material per floor area BUKHEERNEEMBLE
(tonnes/m?) (W, SEF%K) 0.000 0.000
Total packaging material per employee BEEANBEMHLE (M EA)
(tonnes/employee) 0.021 0.021
2 Figure calculated with reference to EIA US. : WP RIBEIA USTHE ©
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
Electricity: Reduction
Details of electricity reduction is set out on page 75.

Paper: Reduction

All office paper and almost all paper for printing the Group’s
publications are Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified or
recycled paper, except old publication (such as catalogues) which
is yet to disseminate. Not only adopting FSC certified paper, the
Group encourages the use of paperless communication. If printing
is necessary, we encourage environmentally friendly printing
manner (such as to print on both sides, reduce font size and
margin). For internal reference document, we upload to intranet or
circulate hardcopies instead of printing one copy for each staff
member. In addition, paper collection tray is placed next to printer
to gather single-side-printed paper for re-use.

Our box packaging fits the size of goods so as to minimise the use
of paper and provide the best protection to the goods contained.
The materials of our carton boxes fulfil relevant safety standards.
Besides, we encourage the use of carton boxes for multiple times.

o FSC is an independent, non-governmental, not-for-profit organisation
established to promote environmentally appropriate, socially beneficial, and
economically viable management of the world’s forests.

Electronic devices: Re-use

Technology advancement leads to shorter lifespan of electronic
devices. Certain equipment becomes obsolete or incompatible to
our operations after software upgrades. We are aware of potential
environmental and health hazards related to disposal of e-waste.
Hence, we have adopted the following initiative:

*  Obsolete: Donate to non-governmental organisations such as
Hong Kong Caritas Computer Recycle Project

Total paper consumption (tonnes) HLEFE L E ()
Office paper (tonnes) HAERE (W)
Paper for printing publications (tonnes) FTENTI A4 (i)

IRIE (%)

ABTRE R RRBR
B s
BRBDABEERTE7ST -

WL RL

AR RZERRERILF A SE T ALK FHFM
EEZRANIRBELR  EERKBBREANIES
T# (0= @ B F) BRI o AERAN R AHRMERE
ZALINEL - TSR ERTHMER o MFTED -
HEAS IR RAITEN T (FIANIREITEN ~ 48/ F 4
ML) - HTFRMWSEXH - RN ELEEREMR
&5 MARRNBAR R EITEN - EIAN o BEoh - 45K
WEESKRETITENED - WERSEITENFIMHK - U
BER-

BNWEBRESHBORITRANT  NIRERD A
KRN BROEMERRERT - RIONLBENOM
BEABIMXZ2FRE o B - HAVEmEARE—KHE
/N

o HAMEEZER NI EBFELRNG - RIZBHRH
B ERBEMERRELES EHS EASNELF L
ATHERE -

EFEFRE

RS HEERFRENEASD - ETRETH
HARE  BEINHSRESERDIE - RAHE
AXRLCEBFHENBERERBERE  BULX
AT AT

. e BB FIEBUTELR - FlanE B eEE BN
BAEITY
9.912 8.115
7.840 6.748
2.072 1.368
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A4 Climate Change

IR (50)

Ad SR

We aim to build resilience to climate change by identifying and HATEEBIIRFIREBSBET LN RIE - KL
managing climate change risks and opportunities, and by  R#&IE&MSREk #9K B RE LN SRR
developing strategies to adapt to climate change and to reduce our  #fHl7 ; ¥R AEANSIENAEEN o

negative impacts to climate.

The table below sets out our findings of significant climate-related T & &5 EA1X B X SIRAE % KB R L@ 49 1744 45

risks and opportunities:

Physical risks
KRB
Acute physical risks, such as super typhoon and

extreme weather events
IRIGSE R - a0 58 & KRR R SE 4

Chronic physical risks, such as rising temperature
B - PSR EF

Transition risks

R
Technology risks, such as the use of technology to
lower emissions
BRKES - a0 sE AR A A B
Market risks, such as shift towards green products
iR - BlIng e m BRI

Market risks, such as higher insurance premiums

AR - AR F E

Green products
GErm

E

More spending on repair and improving adaptive
capacity of premises

R INLENS B 12 = WMl E RIRE D MY AR R T 32

Business closure, leading to loss of revenue

Fil - SEWEBRK

More spending on cooling

12 h0FEIBAR R X

Increased cost of raw materials
FRAF R ARG 0

Substitution of existing products with eco-friendly
options

AT W IMR = R E

Higher insurance costs

PREQ A N

Increased revenue because customers are willing
to pay more on green products using advanced
technologies
EFERXMNRENFZAMIRALERENGE M
LB
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A4 Climate Change (cont'd)

Our near term targets are to adapt to impacts of climate change.
With extreme weather occurring more frequently, we place
sandbags in low-lying areas and install floodgates when heavy
rainfall is approaching. Our premises are well-maintained with
resilient elements so as to lower potential damages resulting from
extreme weather and attain better insurance packages. We make
use of e-communications to keep close contact with staff members,
customers and suppliers to ensure business continuity in place. We
provide a range of products with green features to the market.

In the long term, we endeavour to reduce carbon footprint in our
operations to help mitigate climate changes. The Group has set a
reduction target of 5% in total energy use and total GHG emission
from the Baseline by the year ending 31 March 2024. We regularly
monitor our progress for review and continuous improvement, in
addition to reporting the performance on an annual basis.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes its success, long-term growth and development
depend upon the quality, performance and commitment of its staff
members. We are committed to providing equal opportunity to our
staff, matching the right people with the right job, and offering
them a suitable platform to develop and excel in their career.
Besides, we keep in mind to treat all staff members fairly and
equally. We are committed to the provision of a healthy and safe
workplace and encourage the work-life balance of staff members.

IRIE (%)

AAERT A (£)

BINEH B AENSIET NI o BEE RIS
RENE  BNEREXREDE - FEAFEKIG
BIREMER o RATNYLRFEE > ARSIERE
Ak URERHERSEKNEERE  HAREE
HFWREAR - RINNAABFERSAT - EFRRMH
NEREBTHRER  LUEARLFZHESLME - Hil@H
FiIRB—RIEERRESNT R °

KIZME @ RFOBOBLESH AR ZT - BRREE
SEZN - AEACKREENBE-E-_NFE=A
=t-RLEFEHERERALSERBESMAERE
ENEELRD5%WER - REFHRERININ - &K
NEERERTERR  WETFERSEKRE -

e

BRARFTEMN

FEAREEAZRM  KEEKRAR  BHAT
ZRE - RIKAE - RONBO I ATRBFEN
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B1 Employment

As at 31 March 2022, our workforce in operations in Hong Kong
was recorded at 136 employees.

Our employment policy adheres to statutory requirements
including but not limited to the Mandatory Provident Fund,
Statutory Minimum Wages, Employees’” Compensation Insurance
and Paid Annual Leave. Competitive packages are offered to
attract, retain and motivate competent individuals. We are
dedicated to promoting equal opportunities for all of our
employees in different areas, including recruitment, compensation
and benefits, training, staff promotion and transfer. All staff
members are assessed based on their ability, performance and
contribution, irrespective of their gender, age, disability, family
status, race, religious beliefs or sexual orientation.

We provide employee benefits such as medical allowance and
transport allowance. The Group supports the staff’s family life by
providing children’s scholarship. The Group has joined the
Government’s gender mainstreaming network “Gender Focal
Point”.

Hew)

BRERFTIEM (L)

B1EH

F-E--F=A=+—0 FxEHMNEBATA
HRN136F °

BINNRABREFEEENE  BFEETRTEH
HARE  ZERRIR  BRIZRERBFF
B BRIMEHARF N 2HMETBURS BRRH
MEFTAT - AEABNERETCEHE N2 ERERAR
BFENS - SHBERE  HFMRERN  # &
A RBER - REFATIRER T 28D - RIAMTTEAE
HRAh - MAREMR - FiR - TRE - REWRR - M
B~ REUS SR E e

FERREESAURIBEMERARFN » UK
FaRES  RORAIZRELE - ARHACS5F
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)
Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)
B1 Employment (cont’d)

All of our staff members work on full time basis. Our workforce is
comprised of:

Gender 13|

459

Turnover rate BERZE
6.78%

The overall turnover rate of workforce in Hong Kong: 8.15%

Age group F#4E 5!

Turnover rate B
2.50%

Turnover rate B
19.05%

. Below 30
=TTF
30-50
=t+=zEh+

Above 50
BiBA+

Turnover rate B
9.47%

HMIBTERARAR2021/22F F1)

» .
iavw,, 7 ;/)‘/ vard 7o

. 4 /
2209221 AV v

U
R K 11]

E D)

BRARFIEMR (L)
B1 & (%)
REARTHYNEIRAT - HARWOT :

Male
B

Female
ik

Turnover rate BfifER
9.21%

EBRTEMEERE 8.15%

Length of service fR# 4 5

0 - 3 years
TE=F

>3 -5 years
BBZERF

>5-10 years
BBAETF

>10- 15 years
Blt+E+AF

> 15 years

BB+ RF
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SOCIAL (cONT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B2 Health and Safety

Our workplace is kept clean and tidy, with adequate work space
for staff members to work. Apart from that, a number of initiatives
have been carried out to increase the staff awareness in health and
safety at work:

e Occupational safety briefing

>  Guide new staff members especially those work in
warehouse or go to construction sites

> Staff members are able to stop work if they feel unsafe or
is not properly trained

e Staff handbook (detailing health and safety guidelines)
Warehouse and shop frontline staff members are under supervision
to ensure they work safely. All staff members, before going to
construction sites, have attended safety training. When entering
construction sites, they are equipped with safety helmet and
briefed by relevant safety officers.

In light of the outbreak of Coronavirus during the year, we have
implemented the following measures to safeguard the safety of our
staff members, such as:

e Raise the frequency of cleaning in workplace

e Place air purifiers in workplace

e Provide surgical masks, disinfection products and rapid test
kits to all staff members

e Take body temperature of staff members

Number and rate of work-related S:=% (81 LREE)

fatalities occurred in each of the ~ SFET THH AL
past three years including the Kitt=
reporting year

Lost days due to work injury E IRk TERR

e

BARSIEMR (L&)

B2RESZ 2

BN I EZFREFZSELT RETFTRAIZBH
TERE o o BIEFRSMHUAIESAIH
IERESZ2RIR:

o HRbZ2MIR

> AFABRAT(EERSXOCHEERRAM
AT RMES

> RIMBHTFRLHAZEYZITE
LA

o  AIFMOFARESZLEIES)
ROREHNLKNATHZEE  UBRENZE
TE-FERATTHABRRGBEZAES MR 2E

e FiEARFMER - HEMME L 208K T
HZ2FTENHEIRE -

ETFAREABRHESH - RIS RELLT 5 5
RERTZ: i :

o BINEETAEAMENRER

o HEIFZMHMEZSSAR

o M[FEAIRMINGIOE . - HERmMmRREL
Wi =

. NRAIEBEMRER

0.000
0.000

0.000
0.000

0.000
0.000
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B3 Development and Training

The Group maintains an open, interactive and motivating working
environment for our staff members. The management reviews its
training and career development programmes with employees. A
wide spectrum of training programmes is provided to cater the
needs of staff members across different roles and positions.

Set out below are some training and development programmes:

e Professional development: Product

e Professional development: Hard skills and soft skills

e Compliance and legal programme

e On-board training

e Health and safety training

I )

BERSITEN (%)

B3 £ R R

AERANRIEEFTH BB ERSH N TR
5o EEESEALRKITHEIREVERGE -
BIEEBESZHEINER . WHERTRRER
VIR IEK -

AT HBAENRERAE :

o LTUERR: R

o HTUAR: BHRHIRA

o AMREAE

o BRI

o  RESZR2FIY

The percentage of employees trained BHFIREARINNINZVNRABS L
by gender and employee category 100.0%
Gender — male 5 — 5B 100.0%
Gender — female MR — & 100.0%
Category — managerial x5 — & 100.0%
Category — general office ¥ H) — —ARCER 100.0%
Category — frontline/operational K3 —wiLkEiz 100.0%

The average training hours completed per employee &M BIKRERAXFNS BERATK
by gender and employee category S F 1 etk 1.078
Gender — male MR — BEH 1.211
Gender — female MH — & 0.907
Category — managerial x5 —BEE 2.500
Category — general office K5 — —RRICER 0.768
Category — frontline/operational KB — Bk EiE 1.217
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SOCIAL (cONT'D) o)
Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd) BRARFITEMR (LK)
B4 Labour Standards B4 55 L&

We comply with local employment regulations in all locations of HKABFHREEEHLIHENEAEN  HEFR
our operations, and do not engage in any forced or child labour. A&7 THE T @A - AERBEAFEEEN
To ensure we are legally compliant, we check applicants’ identity & ' EA1&ZERIREN S 6 - BEMAIHFRR
including their age and eligibility for employment. Regular reviews W ##& « RATERNRAEN (BFEBEEF) #H1T
on our employment practices (including recruitment procedures) & it ABRZERFTE o RAIEE - BHFIRETH
are conducted to ensure we operate in a fair manner. Any case of AREFEZHPL > HTLXENLREERE -
illegal, forced and child labour will be investigated and escalated

to the management where necessary.

B5 Supply Chain Management B5 A EHE
The number of major suppliers, based on invoice amount, by HBAZRLIME > KXW IWETEMNEHE W
geographical region is indicated below: T

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

TEHRER
AUSTRALIA (1) CHINA (6) DENMARK (2) [ FRANCE (1) Il GERMANY (6)
M (1) 1 E (6) 12 (2) EE (1) = E (6)
HONG KONG (3) B ITALY (6) Il JAPAN (2) SWITZERLAND (1) B UsA (1)
%8 (3) = K7 (6) A& (2) I £ (1) XHE (1)

Note: The definition of “major suppliers” refers to suppliers of products and/or sub-  Bff5E : [EEHFE | HEXIEAEABDEEHNEBHRBIL 1
contractors of services to which the Group incurred purchases exceeding BHBTNTBEMERRESDEE -
HK$1 million.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B5 Supply Chain Management (cont’d)

As our operations connect us to a wide range of stakeholders along
the supply chain, we strive to make sure that sustainability
considerations have been embedded in our procurement practices.
Our Environmental and Social Policy is in place to facilitate
communication and align our sustainability expectations, including
legal compliance, anti-corruption policy, environmental protection,
workplace health and safety, employment practices, with our
suppliers and sub-contractors.

In selecting installation sub-contractors, we consider a range of
factors such as price, past performance, scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health
and safety standards.

We conduct appraisals to evaluate performance of suppliers and
sub-contractors. Factors assessed include production capacity,
technical capability, quality control systems, personnel quality and
sustainability performance. The results determine which suppliers
and sub-contractors deemed high risk and require further
consideration in future purchases. Appraisals are made at least
annually to ensure our supply chain stays aligned with our vision.
During the year, the Group was not aware that any key suppliers or
sub-contractors had significant actual or potential negative impact
on business ethics, environmental protection, human rights or
labour practices.

In view of the growing environmental awareness in Hong Kong,
we advocate the adoption of green features in product selection,
such as water flow control and FSC-certified materials. We give
precedence to those who have made strong environmental
commitments and those produce in close proximity to reduce
carbon emissions from transportation. We will continue our efforts
in bringing environmentally friendly products to customers.

Number of suppliers
By region: Hong Kong
Non-Hong Kong

(INTSEEE!
Zi X% 5

E D)

BRERFIEM (&)

B5 4% EHE (4)
BTAEFALSHERBIEZRINSHNE FORZSEFD
ERIYBRER  BRIMNBIOBRKARXWRGC ERATIFE
KBRTE - BAEFERRRIESEBE @ (RESHMN
BRAIBEEAE HEFSRINNFEENTEERRE
HiE  BIEAEEN AR MERP - TS
FEERZE BEAEM -

THEZRSBEN - RNERSZHEE - Al
% IERD - MEHAE  HARED FMRIEFE T
AR S T 24T o

B ENE RS B8R RIAT MG - At
RAEBEEFED BARED REEHRS - AR
RERAFZARKA - THEREERANSA
RENERIBEE  ARERROREPHE—D
LR IMEBFEELHT IR KRR AEE
SEMNNESRE - - AFE - XEARBRNE
AERENERSEENELER  RERT - AN
35 TENAERHKERIEE A E R o

LETEBNIRZBTMIER - RINESEREZE
R MAKRERERERMEBERSIAEN
E e AL £ E BXIIMRAE A T & i BURFE 4D
I XA =R - BUBDE I 72 R A9 BHE R o B4
BB D RNE P HRIMR @ e
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(BB 37
FEEB 166
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SOCIAL (cONT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility

Our customers include contractors, property developers and
dealers. We recognise the uniqueness of requirements of each
customer, and offer a full range of products to satisfy customers’
needs.

The Group’s objective is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builder’s hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. We strive to
provide quality products and services to fulfil customers’ needs;
and to establish the brand and reputation of our Group for
customers’ recognition of our ability to serve them with two
fundamental qualities, “sincerity” and “quality”, which would
enable us to build customer loyalty, allowing us to establish strong
customer relationships for future businesses.

Product safety is our primary concern. The majority of our
products, in terms of purchase value, originate from Europe where
rigorous product testing regulations and requirements are in place.
Nevertheless, we carry out a number of measures to ensure product
safety, such as warranties and certificates from manufacturers, tests
according to customers’ requirements.

During the year, there was no product recall for safety and health
issues in relation to products sold by us; there was no substantiated
complaints received relating to the provision and the use of
products and services that have a significant impact on the Group.

Apart from safety, we also value performance ratings and feedback
from customers, of which feedback identifies areas of
improvement. We have established various communication
channels including corporate website and social media platforms
to facilitate and strengthen communication with our customers.
Feedback from customers is discussed and improvement will be
made where appropriate. Our labelling and advertising materials
are reviewed to ascertain their compliance with relevant marketing
communication practices.

e

BERSITEM ()
B6 7= BHAF
BNE P QERES - WL EREREHSE - RIR
PEFEETRANEE  HEH—RIFRLUBR
EFHNER -

FEFAFIRARBEERERES - B8 BFEREE
R XMERE - BAENE 2 £ B S AR~
DEEFME  SREAREA ZRENE - BIE
ERERAFmERSARESTE  LE PO
BENEMIBB IR IREI2RE  EYNFEAR
LmBENMEREERETER  SAKHASEFE
MEREXE - NARRREGFESR -

FREZERINNEEZEEE - BWXSTMS
AEANFREZEFBEON - SN~ RNEAE
RER+H 4% « REME - BARWMFDEBEHR
FmEE - fIIESEFRNRIERIES - RIEFS
HIESREATI A

TAEE BNEEN"RBTENRENRER
BMEFEY BLERSREHERER~RMRSM
NAEARTEALMNEEHERNRI -

BRTYFRZE  BNTEAZFHRIUITFNRENL -
MAPEFELEHARENLT - RIEELS
MDBRE - BRECLMEREREETE - e
RS ERMNE /N8 - T eEFHELH
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility (cont'd)

We protect our proprietary position by registering trademarks in
markets of presence and in development. We respect others’
intellectual property rights and conduct trademark searches to
avoid infringement.

We comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that the customer information we receive is only used for
its intended purposes. We regularly brief our staff, especially front-
line staff, to take great care in dealing with privacy matters. We did
not receive any substantiated complaints regarding breaches of
customer privacy or loss of customer data during the year.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
integrity when doing business. We adopt the code of conduct (the
“Code of Conduct”) that complies with HKEX expectations on
corporate governance and the Independent Commission Against
Corruption’s anti-corruption policies. Our Code of Conduct is
outlined in the staff handbook and applies to every personnel of
the Group, including its directors and staff at all levels.

Sub-contract works are made in accordance with the standard
procedure of the Group. Once having received the quotations from
potential contractors, we evaluate each based on a range of factors
such as: price, past performance, scale of the project, technical
competence, environmental records, workplace health and safety
standards. Decisions on sub-contract appointments are reviewed
and endorsed by the management of the Group.

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism for staff members
and business partners to report any potential bribery or other
misconduct behaviours. All cases are treated with strict confidence.
The Managing Director is responsible to implement such
mechanism while the Audit Committee is responsible to review.

The Code of Conduct and anti-bribery training is included in the
induction programme of all staff members. Our conditions of
employment require compliance with the Code of Conduct.
Additionally, anti-corruption training materials were circulated to
the Board of Directors during the year.

There was no legal case of corruption brought against our Group
or its staff members during the year.

E D)

BRARFIEMR (L)

B6 /=@ F A (£¢)

BB AERAERARPNHZ LERERRRY
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B8 Community Investment

The Group is committed to be an active participant in the local
community wherever it operates. Our approach is to primarily
focus on the elderly, children and the underprivileged, and to give
support to environmental protection. Our volunteering programmes
continued to be limited due to the pandemic and subsequent social
distancing measures, yet we managed to visit and distribute food to
the elderly, fund a scholarship and clean shorelines during the
year.

We encourage employees to do the same to contribute to their
neighbourhood. A care to the society will eventually benefit our
future generations.

e

BARSIEMR (L&)

B8 #H X &RE
RERRIORBMAEEZMEM 21X o KATH
WEEEREXEFEA  JLERBHRME > HRINER
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FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

We welcome comments and suggestions regarding our
environmental and social performance for continuous
improvement. Stakeholders may at any time send their written
enquiries and concerns to the ESG Representative of the Company
at its Head Office as follows:

ESG Representative

16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

esg@ebon.com.hk

NABEHZR

FNROEHFHERFERIARRERESRIA &
MEAREW - FHETRENRERKE 24 H &
REREZEMFARRLENELZARRIE - 1
SRERAR - HUMT ¢

g #HaRERAE
BB

AT BILBE33 5
F-BLKRE

16-18 %%
esg@ebon.com.hk
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INDEX #i

Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
BE - —REER
RBHARIEIR Eipud BIKE 2 (TR)
Subject Area A — Environment
EEBHEA—FE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT - HBY
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 73
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RIE BRESFBESEHER - MARTBHHT BERLTERFUNTEEN B<F 73
@ HBE R
b)  EIWETABERZEHEREERAGIH R
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Comply 74
REERIEIRAL HER M M2 B AR S HE ORI - B<F 74
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in Comply 74
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.
RESIEIRAL2 HEECEEDMERAZCEE)WRESEHRE (UMITE) K& (WER)BRE - ey 74
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. Explain 74
RELMIEIRALS FEEBEERFUEE UAMITE) R (ER) BE R 74
KPI'AT.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Comply 74
intensity.
KBERIEIRAL4 FFELERFAMEE (UML) R (ER) BE ° BF 74
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 73
KBERIERALS HORFTAT M B9 HE R 8 B AR R YA B)IX L B AR P SR AN P IR o Py 73
KPI'AT.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a Comply 74
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
RELHIEITALG HRABEERLTEERFNNTTE  RERFMT L ORE B R AREIXER g 74
PRATSRENA S IR
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
REA2 - BRER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Comply 75
materials.
—RIRE BRERRR (BIERER - kR EMEME) OB e 75
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in Comply 76
total (kWh in “000s) and intensity.
REEIEIRA2.1 REBSNEER,SEEER (8 - K5h) BEE (UTATRNITH) <P 76
REE -
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Comply 76
REBEBIEITA2.2 BREKERBE - B 76
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 75
RBERIEIRA2.3 R FRAT M A9 RETR R A R s B AR R IR E XL B AR T RERE D IR © B<F 75
KPI'A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, Comply 76
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
RESMIEIRA2.4 iR SR BUE A AKOR £ A B AR » LUK FRAT SZE9 FIOK S B AR R IR B ix Lk B<F 76
B AR REREY D IR o
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, Comply 76
with reference to per unit produced.
KBERIEIRA2.5 FIRmAAEEMBNEE (M) R (WER) LT 8L 58 - B<F 76
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INDEX (CONT'D)

Aspects, General Disclosures

and KPIs
BH - —RBREER
KBS RIS

W

5| (&)

Description

iR

jﬁomédqgﬁ%uﬁwulﬂz
pPropeng

Compliance

level

AWKE

JIR K 171 2

Reference
(page)

£E (TUR)

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and Comply 77
natural resources.

—RiNE FAREAT A R R AR FIE R E AR A BUE o B 77

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Comply 77
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

REEGHIEIRA3.1 FR WS FHNPERRRARONEAL R CRNERFRIMETH) o EF 77

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues Comply 78
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—RINE RBIR RN EER RSN ETAFTEZMNEXSRERBEHOBEE - B 78

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and Comply 78-79
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

REEGRIERA4.1 HARACER AN KT AT ERMNEXNURBXRER - REXIT3) &7 78-79

General Disclosure Information on: Comply 79-80
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
—RIKE BXRFNRFERE BEREA - THENHK - BE - TSNS Zad - REA g 79-80
MR A fFE R BN
@ HBE R
b)  BIWETABERFMERERRAH
KB R
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age Comply 80-81
group and geographical region.
REGMIEIRBIA BIER) - RAXE (WERRFR) - FRAMNRBXISNER S - g 80-81
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Comply 81
RESMIEIRB1.2 BIER) - FIRARI KX D HEARKE o g 81
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INDEX (CONT'D) #5| (%)

Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
BHEH - —BREER
RBAMIER ik BIKF 2E (MR)
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
REB2: RESRE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 82
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
— R E BRRHZETHERERRERABRRLELEN e 82
@ BER R
b)  EFHETABERZEH R EERAH
HEH o
KPI'B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years Comply 82
including the reporting year.
RESIERRB2.1 BE=ZF(BELRFE) BFERTITHNWATRRILE - ey 82
KPI'B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Comply 82
RESIEHRB2.2 EITRATEBE - ey 82
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they Comply 82
are implemented and monitored.
REBEMIEIFB2.3 HRFARANRRES 2218 - URAXMITRERSE e 82
Aspect B3: Development and Training
REB3 : KRR
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at Comply 83
work. Description of training activities.
— iR BREFREAET THRRIOMRARIREENER « #HRZIES) - e 83
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. Comply 83
senior management, middle management).
REEIERFB3.1 EUAIREARG (WSREEE - PREBR)WONZVRABDLL - ey 83
KPI'B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee Comply 83
category.
REBEMIEIRB3.2 ZURIRERAENKSD  BERATRZG T - e 83
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EEB4 : 5 TAN
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 84
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RiE BRBILETHRBEHZTH g 84
(a) BE R
b)  EFHETABERZEH B ERERASH
HYB RS
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Comply 84
forced labour.
REGRIEITBAA HR T HRER AN ER B RETRBHTIT o BF 84
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Comply 84
KRERIEIRB4.2 HIRE L TENEREEBRE R ER TR TR ey 84
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Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT

Scope and Objective

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA”) has been
engaged by the E.Bon Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 599)
(“E.Bon”) to undertake an independent verification of its
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“the Report”). The
Report stated the economic, environmental and social performance
of E.Bon in the period of Tst April 2021 to 31st March 2022 for its
major operation in Hong Kong.

The aim of this verification is to provide a reasonable assurance on
the reliability of the report content. The Report has been prepared
in accordance with the Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”) of the Main Board
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK").

Level of Assurance and Methodology

The process applied in this verification was based on the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised),
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our evidence gathering process was
designed to obtain a reasonable level of assurance as set out in the
standard for the purpose of devising the verification conclusion.
The extent of this verification process covered the criteria set in the
ESG Guide of the SEHK.

The verification process included verifying information relevant to
reporting and management procedures, including stakeholder
engagement methods and result, and materiality assessment
processes. In addition, system and process for collecting, collating
and reporting sustainability performance data were verified. Raw
data and supporting evidence of the selected representative
samples were also thoroughly examined during the verification
process.
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (conT'D)

Independence

E. Bon is responsible for the collection and presentation of the
information presented. HKQAA does not involve in calculating,
compiling, or in the development of the Report. Our verification
activities are independent from E.Bon. There was no relationship
between HKQAA and E.Bon that would affect the independence of
HKQAA for providing the verification service.

Conclusion
Based on the verification results, HKQAA has obtained reasonable
assurance and is in the opinion that:

e Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG Guide
of the SEHK:

e The Report illustrates the sustainability performance of E.Bon
in a clear, comparable and timely manner; and

e The data and information disclosed in the Report are reliable
and complete.

Nothing has come to HKQAA attention that the selected
sustainability performance information and data contained in the
Report has not been prepared and presented fairly and honestly, in
material aspects, in accordance with the verification criteria. In
conclusion, the Report reflects truthfully the sustainability
commitments, policies and performance of E.Bon, and discloses
transparently their sustainability performance that is commensurate
with their sustainability context and materiality.

Signed on behalf of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

Meico Cheong
Senior General Manager, Innovation Business
27 June 2022
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To the Members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 107 to 189, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2022;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Provision for inventory obsolescence

e Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables
and contract assets

EIN: SE =

HMNERFEEBITMA20H HCEBFIHEND
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Refer to notes 2.11, 4.1 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements for the disclosures of the related accounting policies,
judgements and estimates

As at 31 March 2022, the Group held net inventories of
approximately HK$115 million after provision of obsolescence.

Management assessed the provision at each period ended for
obsolete or slow-moving inventories. In determining the amount of
allowance required for obsolete and slow-moving inventories,
management evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical
and estimated future sales pattern and other factors and compares
the carrying value of inventories to their estimated net realisable
value.

The identification of inventory obsolescence and determination of
estimated net realisable value require the use of significant
judgement and estimates, including their nature, ageing, latest
selling price, and expectation of future sales orders. The estimates
are subject to uncertainty of market trends, customer demands and
fashion trends.

We focused on this area because of the significance of the gross
inventory balance to the consolidated financial statements and the
estimation and judgement involved in determining the provision
for inventory obsolescence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We understood and evaluated the key controls by which
management reviews on inventory provision including procedures
on periodic review of obsolete and aged inventory and assessment
on provision for inventory and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors. We validated the key
controls that the Group has implemented to estimate the loss
allowance for inventory provision.

We understood and assessed the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the assumptions adopted in the provision policy
and basis of identification of the obsolete and slow-moving
inventories by referencing to their ageing, historical and subsequent
sales patterns and estimated future sales.

We tested, on a sample basis, of the accuracy of the ageing report
of inventory against goods receipt notes.

We evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, the historical sales
records of inventories against sales invoices, goods delivery notes
and purchase orders from customers and the estimated future sales
against secured orders.

We also assessed the estimated net realisable value by comparing
the estimated selling price and sales quantity of inventories with
the corresponding post year-end sales data.

We considered these assumptions made by management were
supportable by available evidence appropriate based on the
procedures performed above.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables and
contract assets

Refer to notes 2.8 and 4.2 to the consolidated financial statements
for the disclosures of the related accounting policies, judgements
and estimates.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had trade and retention
receivables of approximately HK$127 million and contract assets
of approximately HK$4 million.

Management assesses the provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on the lifetime
expected credit losses. These receivables are grouped by shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, whenever appropriate. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical credit losses experience and credit
profile of the customers and are adjusted to reflect the effects of
current conditions as well as forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables. Receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection are
assessed individually for provision for impairment.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the trade and
retention receivables and contract assets to the consolidated
financial statements and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of these
receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We understood, evaluated the key control procedures performed
by which management assessed the expected credit losses,
including its procedures on periodic review of aged receivables
and assessment on expected credit losses allowance of these
receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors. We validated the key controls that the
Group has implemented to estimate the loss allowance for
impairment of trade and retention receivables and contract assets.

We evaluated the significant judgements and assumptions involved
in the expected credit losses measurement model, including
management’s assessment of credit risks of the debtors, considering
their credit profiles, historical repayment patterns, publicly
available information of these debtors, and forward-looking factors
such as market conditions and economic growth, and assessed the
reasonableness of the judgements and assumptions adopted.

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing report of
trade and retention receivables by tracing to invoices.

We performed recalculation of the ECL model to assess the
mathematical accuracy.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered the estimation
and judgement made by management in determining the expected
credit losses allowance of trade and retention receivables and
contract assets were supportable by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT’D)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 123 %28l &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT’D)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 July 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %&£ @E %

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE=-F--F=ZA=+-HLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other (losses)/gains, net

Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange gains on translation
of financial statements of

foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Gains on revaluation of properties held

for own use
Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use

Wz
HERA

EF

HAb A

Hitn (S1HR),Meas - B8

ERMRENRT 2 RETIR
A

7 HERA

T X

ZERR
L ON
3525 A

W5 - A

BR AT 1S B BE 7
FREBIT X

RATREE R A FERF

HiteE s

HEWHEEH 7K E R AT

MEBIILFWERER 2
LR s

EfEFER AL 2 s

BXREABERRNLZ
BRI

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

Notes
FEE

10

13

16

26

2022 2021
—|-=F -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
494,592 422,454
(311,096) (263,869)
183,496 158,585
2,005 3,711
(1,361) 3,587
94) (139)
(94,699) (81,956)
(70,189) (67,047)
19,158 16,741
161 178
(3,737) (4,324)
(3,576) (4,146)
15,582 12,595
(3,688) (1,826)
11,894 10,769
294 1,000
3,721 6,338
(614) (1,046)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HZE=-Z-—F=A=+-ALFE

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Earnings per share
(expressed in HK cents per share)
— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 114 to 189 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Notes
B E
FEHMLAEKE  REE
AATFEENSEESTA
I 5 B8
BRGER (UZRRABWNEN)
— EARRE 15

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

GFEtEBER
2022 2021
B F -5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
3,401 6,292
15,295 17,061

1.98 cents &1l

1.79 cents &1l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & WHRR %

As at 31 March 2022 F=ZZ==Z&#=A=+-H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Deferred income tax assets
Retention and other receivables

Current assets
Inventories
Trade, retention and other receivables

Contract assets
Current income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity
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Notes
FEE

16
17
18
26
21

20

21
21

22

27
28

2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
269,162 245,891
45,444 65,141
- 32,300

5,873 7,019
6,003 5,874
326,482 356,225
115,420 142,451
148,649 93,109
4,338 4,325
3,136 3,604
104,199 102,964
375,742 346,453
702,224 702,678
60,060 60,060
410,461 401,172
470,521 461,232
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & WKk

As at 31 March 2022 F=ZZE=-=Z&#=A=+-H

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Other provision
Lease liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Borrowings
Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

R
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 107 to 189 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 14 July 2022 and were

signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
BHHE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 114 to 189 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

2022 2021

—E-F -5

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ip=a FTHET TET
23 5,000 3,800
17 22,094 41,920
26 18,900 19,276
45,994 64,996

23 34,386 35,975
23 75,337 42,248
25 935 851
17 27,902 28,477
24 42,083 66,574
5,066 2,325

185,709 176,450

231,703 241,446

702,224 702,678

FI07E189TMMNEGEMBZRECLESEST -
ZZELA+TMBH#E  HEATHESRRZE -

TSE Sun Po, Tony
B =E
Director

EFE

F114ZE189MZHDERNZELRE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4&R@&a)*

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE=-F--F=ZA=+-HLFE

Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger  Capital ~ Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  eamings Total
RE RGEN EftHE GX#E RAHE TA#E  IEHE  REEA a1t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
Téx TEx TExr TEx TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx TExn

At 1 April 2020 FT-2-Z5MA-A 60,060 1,200 136,108 6,979 2,896 (1,112) 2103 241942 450,177
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - - - 10769 10,769
Other comprehensive income AfteElE
Exchange loss on translation of financial ~ $E§5MLEMEHRE 2R TR

statements of foreign operations - - - - - 1,000 - - 1,000
Gains on revaluation of properties BERRMLERNE

held for own use - - 6,338 - - - - - 6,338
Tax effect relating to revaluation of BXERBRNL 2 BAFM

properties held for own use - - (1,046) - - - - - (1,046)
Total comprehensive income SEREEH - - 5,292 - - 1,000 - 10769 17,061
Dividends (Note 14(a)) BRE (HE 14(2) - - - - - - - (6,000 (6,006
Appropriation to statutory reserve EEREAE (HE26)

(Note 28) - - N - - - 22 (22) -
Transactions with owners EfEEzRS - - = = - - 22 (6,028)  (6,000)
At 31 March 2021 F-B--EZf=1-H 60,060 1,201 141,400 6,979 2,896 (112) 2,125 246,683 461,232

The notes on pages 114 to 189 are an integral part of these Z114ZE 189 M2 HENZEHRAMSIRE—HH -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4&R@% s

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HZE=-Z-—F=A=+-ALFE

At1 April 2021 T-2--%@mA-B
Profit for the year EERR
Other comprehensive income B EYE

Exchange gain on translation of financial  $EE5ML &M &HE 2R ME
statements of foreign operations

Gains on revaluation of properties BERRNLERGNE
held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of BXEHRERNLZBREN

properties held for own use

Total comprehensive income SEREEH

Dividends (Note 14(a)) RE (K 14)

Appropriation to statutory reserve EEREDE (F226)
(Note 28)

Transactions with owners S5HEEZRS

At 31 March 2022 F-E--FZf=1-H

Share Share Revaluaion ~ Merger ~ Capital  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total
Rx  RENEN EREE  AiME AR AR EEME  REER ait
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TEx T#Ex TEx TEx TEz TEx TEx  TEn
60,060 1,201 141,400 6,979 2,896 (112) 2,125 246,683 461,232
- - - - - - S 1189 11,89
- - - - - 294 - - 294
- - 3m - - - - S VA
- - (614) - - - - - (614)
- - 3,107 - - 294 - 11,894 15,295
_ - - - - - - (6,000 (6,0006)
- - - - - - 55 (55) -
- - - - - - 55 (6,061)  (6,006)
60,060 1,201 144,507 6,979 2,896 182 2,180 252516 470,521

The notes on pages 114 to 189 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F14E189 M2 HHENZEREMSRE—HD -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z&IE&RER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE=-F--F=ZA=+-HLFE

2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ipz3 FET TR
Cash flows from operating activities KREENZAERE
Cash generated from operations REFE NS 29(a) 72,932 97,247
Income tax paid B AER (394) (8,388)
Net cash generated FEEDTFLEANE
from operating activites 72,538 88,859
Cash flows from investing activities REEFHZNEHE
(Payment for settlement)/proceed HEZHEN 2
from disposal of forward contracts (REMSER) P (2,070) 588
Purchase of property, plant and equipment By£4.ll J_J%Eilxﬁ (6,321) (37,393)
Sales proceeds of property, il T ERIRERE
plant and equipment FRSRRB 29(b) 37 -
Interest received [ el)=) 161 178
Net cash used in investing activities REEHFRA AL (8,193) (36,627)
Cash flows from financing activities RREH AL TE
Proceeds from borrowings RN EEI e 29(c) - 15,000
Repayments of borrowings AR 29(c) (3,872) (20,666)
Interest paid on bank borrowings EHRITERFIE (1,385) (1,374)
Principal elements of lease payments HAERZRAEESIS 29(c) (28,907) (31,498)
Interest paid on leases ESFHEEMNE 29(c) (2,351) (2,950)
Proceeds of trust receipt loans ERKERRZFFER 29(c) 40,127 96,830
Repayment of trust receipt loans EHEWIRT \,TAZL,T 29(c) (60,746) (82,296)
Dividends paid 2NRE (6,006) (6,006)
Net cash used in financing activities BEE TR SIS (63,140) (32,960)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents & &I & %1451 b 1,205 19,272
Cash and cash equivalents at FONUERASENY
beginning of the year 102,964 83,434
Exchange gains on cash and RERASENWLCHE WS
cash equivalents 30 258
Cash and cash equivalents at FAYSRASENY
end of the year 22 104,199 102,964

The notes on pages 114 to 189 are an integral part of these #114F 189 A KT N ZEEAMBIRE -5 -
consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 16th—18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture and
provision of interior design services, project and contract
management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings
Limited have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use, investment properties and derivative financial
instruments, which are carried at fair values.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

(@ The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2021:

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Benchmark Reform
— Phase 1
(amendments)

HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions
(amendments)

Except for HKFRS 16, the adoption of the above
new standards and amendments to standards did
not have any significant financial impact on these
consolidated financial statements.

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning on or after
1 January 2021 and have not been early adopted:

FESITTBERME (w0

2.1 4wl E A (L)

(b)) CHAEF-FE-_—F-A—HH
ZEFE 2B EEEREREH
TIREXRMFEN ~ ENRILR
HBIT A

Accounting Guideline 5

21HESI%E5 S
Annual Improvements Project

FERHMA

Amendment to HKFRS 3
BFEAMSIREENE 3 SBITA
Amendment to HKAS 16
BFEASIENE 16 SEITR
Amendment to HKAS 37

HESIDENSE 37 SEITER
Amendment to HKAS 1

BRQITENE 1 SBITA
HKFRS 17
BERMSIHREENE 7S
HK Int 5 (2020)

BERERESS (ZE2EF)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

FREQIMENE 1 SREBMS
REENESZHREE2S

HKAS 8

BFAESITENESS

HKAS 12

BER2IENE 125
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BEEMSIREENE105R
EFEESITENE 285

Effective for
annual periods

beginning

on or after

FT5I A

ZEFRZ

FEHREK

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 1 January 2022
(amendments)

MEREENE — F-MER (BITR) —E--F-A—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 1 January 2022
(amendments)

BEEMSREN-Z-/\FE-T-FEEEQH ZEZZF-A—H

(BT 7)

Definition of a Business (amendments) 1 January 2022

W2 E L BITAK) —E--"F—-A—H

Property, Plant and Equipment (amendments) 1 January 2022

Pl T B RIEE (BITA) —E-"Ff—-A—H

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets (amendments)

K& IRABERIAR= (BITR)

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current (amendments)

1 January 2022

—EZZF-A—H
1 January 2023

Ko RKARHRIER BATAH) —®-=%-A-H
Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

1%5@’%2"] —E-=F—H—H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of 1 January 2023
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (HK Int 5 (2020))
BEBERESS (CRIRF)USHRRNET
— ERANE S TN EREEFHNERIRK
MR (FBERESS (ZE-FF))
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (amendments)

—RZ=F%-A—H

1 January 2023

SUTBEREE (BITAR) —E-=F—-A—H

Definition of Accounting Estimates (amendments)

SIHRITE L (BITA)

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single Transaction (amendments)

B-REFERNSRFRAGEXEEER T (BITA)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture (amendments)

1 January 2023
—E”_=%—-HF—H
1 January 2023

—E-=%—-F—H
To be determined

REERAREQNTHSERL AR HE HEFEE
HER (BIA)
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)

b)

Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of the above new
standards, interpretation and amendments to
standards but is not yet in a position to state
whether they will result in substantial changes to
the Group’s significant accounting policies and the
presentation of its financial statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.2 Subsidiaries (cont'd)
2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that make
strategic decisions.

24

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group's
presentation currency.

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (cont'd)
(b) Transactions and balances

(©

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
within “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at revalued
amount. Property, plant and equipment, other than
leasehold land and buildings, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being the revaluation value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ significantly from that which would be
determined using revaluation values at the reporting
date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same assets previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is
credited to the profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land
and buildings

Over the shorter of unexpired
term of lease or 50 years

Over the shorter of lease
terms or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’” useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and
are recognised in the profit or loss. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserve.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
profit or loss within “Other (losses)/gains, net”.

2

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

EE

2.5

2.6

SITBEBE (»)

il - T ERIRE (£2)

Wb~ B RiIRE AT IB T RMG 1T A E
REBBERIRERNERELED
BMUTENT :

HETHEEF REIB T
FHIH 505

(LBREERNE)

AEL A HAEAFHSEF
(LBEERE)

R RERIER 20%
_E 20%

REAEAFRTERERRETRY
RAZIE (WEA) ©

REZKEESTEMGTTRESH -
UK T {8 B et O 2= LRI i [ < 8 (B O

F=
H
2.7)°

HEZWHER S REMERSKEE 2
ZHEE  AEREATIA THEE
hEFR RERGERRA 2R TEM
& 2 MRABDENERELDNEARE
@R o

RAE YA
REMIFTEZOFERELHWRETF -
FERBARBREASRAREELFHE B
FEBEAEALSA - REMUAD LS ZK
RitgE BEAXKERAR (fHER)
BERA - FHBREIAGE  REYILIZ
DRBEFIK - A Y T INERAEED T B
SRHEENATFHE - ARERFR
THEE  HEER  2REERST
MR R SRR EFE2EMERE
Hig% - ARERFTHREATEHM (S
), Was o R AT °

121



122

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.8.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured at amortised cost; and

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss).

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.8 Financial assets (cont'd)
2.8.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.8.3Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the group
classifies its debt instruments:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3Measurement (cont’d)
Debt instruments (cont’d)

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The
Group's financial assets carried at amortised
cost comprise “trade and retention
receivables”, “deposits and other receivables”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”)

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

2

FESITTBERME (w0

2.8 SRR (&)
2.8.3 I8 (%)
S TA(4)

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

PEEHRAS

AWM EANR SR E (12
ZMERBARNZNERE
RAMB)MBEEZRTTIE
REEAITE  HESHA
7= 2 FI WA 8 A SRR A =
EITAM SN » L IEHIA
FEZEARENTIRITE
BETREBIA BESRT
GAELHEBBERMIEINN
—MNIE - AEFRMEER
FIKWERM A= BESRE
Tt S5 R0 2= A T B2 WK 30 R
RWREBR] - [RER A
B R [ RERAEEN
1o

BARETAHMLEKE
(MRASEITARMEER
#®= 1)

AURBMEARERERHE
ERMAES(MZERT 2
ERBAFNZINTERF
B)MBBEZRTTIEARN
BEItAHMeEEEITE -
IKE{EZ) T H 2 mEl s
ATK - EFIARERRERS
] AR U R ISC IR
RSB TIMBEIN o L 1LH
INERAN - BT HAid
SEHWEBHINZ RITRER
THENBZEFOEER
HoEETRAT ZFEW
A A SERR A RIE T AW 55
WA - BEFXTHREEE
WEERIR 25N —PIE °



2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3Measurement (cont’d)

Debt instruments (cont’d)

— FVPL
Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in “Other (losses)/gain, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2.8.4Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. Details on how the
Group determines the expected credit losses are set
out in Note 3.1(c).
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

29

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

2.11

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain or
loss relating to the fair value re-measurement is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss within
“Other (losses)/gains, net”.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Trade, retention and other receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade,
retention and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, retention and other receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held
at call with banks.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.17 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESIUBERBEwW

POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax 2.18 AERBIEFMEH

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or
the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)

b)

Deferred income tax (cont’d)

The deferred income tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.19 Employee benefits

(@

b)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments to its employees upon the
termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfils certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance
cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts and returns. The Group recognises revenue
when goods are transferred or services are rendered to
the customer.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for the services that the Group has transferred
to a customer. In addition, incremental costs incurred to
obtain a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as
contract assets and subsequently amortised when the
related revenue is recognised. A contract liability is the
Group’s obligation to render the services to a customer
for which the Group has received consideration from
the customer. A contract liability is recognised by the
Group when the customer pays consideration in
advance before the Group satisfy the performance
obligation to the customer.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.21 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(@

(b)

(©

(d)

Sales of goods

The Group sells architectural builders’ hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in the
wholesale and retail market. Revenue from sales of
goods is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods are delivered to
the customer.

Contract revenue

The Group engages in importing, selling and
installation of kitchen collections, and other
construction and decoration works to contractors
and property developers. Revenue from the
services rendered by the Group is recognised over
time as the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The Group has applied the output
method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation of construction contracts is measured
with reference to either surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Finance income

Finance income is recognised using the effective
interest method to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESUBEBEw

POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.22 Leases 2.22 FFE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

— fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

— variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date

— amounts expected to be payable by the group
under residual value guarantees

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

— payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the group exercising that
option.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.22 Leases (cont’d)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group:

— where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

— makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

— the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

— any initial direct costs, and

—  restoration costs.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.22 Leases (cont’d)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While
the group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by
the group.

Payments associated with short-term leases are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 18). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on
their nature. The group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as
a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 —
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from
1 April 2020. The amendment provides an optional
practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not to
assess whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is
a lease modification. Lessees adopting this election may
account for qualifying rent concessions in the same way
as they would if they were not lease modifications.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.22 Leases (cont’d)

The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are
met:

a. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

b. any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and

c. there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16
— COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021, which extended the practical expedient to lease
payments that were due on or before 30 June 2022.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
qualifying COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.25 Earnings per share

(@

(b)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

— the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

— by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

— the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

— by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 WMEXRKRER
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 WMHERREZ

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from borrowings and interest-bearing bank
deposits. Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Interest-bearing financial assets/
liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2022, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$259,000 (2021:
HK$152,000). The 50 basis point increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.

(b) Foreign currency risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the sales transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars. However, foreign currencies are required
to settle the Group’s purchases from overseas
suppliers.

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
certain future commercial transactions and
recognised liabilities, entities in the Group use
forward contracts, transacted with external
financial institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd)

Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

At 31 March 2022, if the EURO (“EUR”) had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the HKD
with all other variables held constant, profit for the
year would have changed as follows. The changes
are mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of EUR denominated
cash and bank deposits, trade payables and
borrowings.

(b)

(©

Post-tax profit (decrease)/increase

when EUR
— strengthened by 5% — FHES5%
— weakened by 5% — 1B 5%
Credit risk
(i)  Risk management

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
trade, retention and other receivables and
contract assets.

To manage the risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, the Group only transacts with
reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions. There has no
recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss
is insignificant.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conT'D)

3.1

Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d)

(i)

Risk management (cont'd)

For other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
current conditions and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors. The
management believes that the expected credit
loss is insignificant.

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, management makes periodic
individual assessment on their recoverability.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and retention receivables and
contract assets.

To measure expected credit losses, the Group
categorises its trade and retention receivables
and contract assets based on the nature of
customer accounts and shared credit risk
characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of customers and the
corresponding historical credit losses
experienced. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cONT'D) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d)
(i) Risk management (cont'd)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31
March 2022 and 2021 was determined as
follows for trade and retention receivables
and contract assets:

As at 31 March 2022
Provision on individual basis
Provision on collective basis

F=B-=5=A=+—-H
BAREERZ
BREBEERZ

As at 31 March 2021
Provision on individual basis
Provision on collective basis

F-2--%=A=1+-H
BIAIEERE
RAREERE

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

55 MBS B 32 ()
31 MHERREEE (L)
(©) MR (%)
(i) MNEREE L)
EZzEEL F-E5——
B —-F=H=+—H
B R U i 7R B2 R AR B8 R A
RENEFHNSHRREETE
M
Trade and retention receivables
and contract assets
R R B BT AR B T AR B R
Weighted
average Gross Net
expected  carrying Loss  carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
A
MBS RE K B SHKZ T % E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER FTER
100% 1,059 (1,059) -
0.07% 130,514 94) 130,420
131,573 1,153) 130,420
100% 904 (904) -
0.17% 82,977 (140) 82,837
83,881 (1,044) 82,837
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd)
(d) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer
term.
As at 31 March 2022, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$104,199,000
(2021: approximately HK$102,964,000) that could
be readily realised to generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk.
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the remaining
contractual maturities of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities, based on
undiscounted cash flows, are summarised below:
Total
contractual
undiscounted Less than
cash flows 3 months
BREARMR
neRE DHF=A
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn T
As at 31 March 2022 F-B-—F%
ZR=t-H
Trade and other payables R S RT3 34,386 34,386
Borrowings (Note) fa (HHE)
— unsecured — TR 1,121 1,121
— secured —EBR# 45,758 1,140
Foreign exchange forward MOzHEA
contract
—Inflow —FA (27,501) (27,501)
— Outflow — A 28,436 28,436
Lease liabilities R K 51,770 8,070
As at 31 March 2021 F-z--%
=R=t-H
Trade and other payables RifS I R E A RIS 35,975 35,975
Borrowings (Note) R (ME)
— unsecured — ZH R 2,513 11,711
— secured —HBHR 50,561 1377
Foreign exchange forward ICEHEN
contract
— Inflow —RA (27,371) (27371)
— Outflow — R 28,222 28,222
Lease liabilities ilwtin 73,208 7,907

Wt 55 3R R B E

55 KBS B (%)
3.1 MBREEZE (L)

(d) FHRENE
AEAEHERNB RN RS
BEFEK- &ﬁﬁ$%l%hi%
e LR R EHR KRS
EFEK-.
FZEBZZF=A=+—RH K&
AEENSRIASENYY
104,199,000 B T (= FB=—F : 4
102,964,000 % 70) » I BRI AR =
HUERAUEERDEENER ©
FoE-ZZER-ZE=--5=A
=+—8  FAEHARAQTIRER
WEHINEeRECSMARZETE
AZHAPEZNT

Between
3 months Between 1 Between 2

and Tyear and2years  and5years Over5 years
=MNRE

-/ -EREW  HEEERN 5ENE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TiEn TiEn THERr

3,419 4,559 9,118 27,522

21,168 21,713 819 -

10,802 - - -

3,419 4,559 9,118 32,088

21,845 25,119 18,337 -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

Note: According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an overriding
repayment on demand clause (“callable feature”), which
gives the lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time at its sole
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as a
current liability in its statement of financial position, as
the borrower does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Accordingly the long-term
portion of the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
HK$37,250,000 (2021: approximately HK$40,968,000)
were classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022.

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives on capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings plus lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt.

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

Wt 55 XS B B8 (42)

3.1

3.2

W& REEE(4)
d) FHBEZHME (L)
FiE : REBEEBEBESSIMWEREZ

2% — BRANRERNEREZE
XRZ2BERBRRZHEK] BHK
RPEEEERE 2 NERE
JER(EHN])  AFRANE
M BRI 2 T 5 4 AR AT B A 4 AR
BERER - WERARTMER
REBEHRR D LN R OE
RERERERAIEE T ZMFIT
BRI 2 HAPR IR IE 4R & HA A
EELtT=ANR-Elt F=F
—ZHE=ZRA=+—08 NEHAHRIT
& 5K H &0 9 937,250,000 T
(=B —F : £940,968,0007%87T)
EFSREMSHRRRSLENTRIR
{ﬁ o

RAEE

RERAEERRN 2 BIRNRERNEREE
BEHELE - NMASHRREHRER -
BEREMSHEURESERZRRE
A BURAR R A RS o

NEFRPBEREN  XEAH 2B
BEXNTRENREST ARREH
RS RATHRG > HHER~ LR
T

REARFERFAFLLRERHETR
IR RF & 1Tl — ARBRER o BEEb R £
BUS MR R AR BAR T E o SRUUE N
REEAENERNGRAERASEN
M E - BAEBITIRG AWM SRR R
Bz [ ] i EABUSFITE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conT'D)

3.2 Capital management (cont'd)

3.3

Total bank borrowings (Note 24)
Lease liabilities (Note 17)
Less: cash and cash equivalents

(Note 22) (FfftsE22)
Net (cash)/debt (M£), /RIS
Total equity ENE
Gearing ratio BrERf R

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a net cash position.
Gearing ratio is not applicable. As at 31 March 2021,
the net debt position resulted primarily from normal
operating and investing activities of the Group which
include the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(Note 16) during the year.

Fair value estimation

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (current
portion), including trade, retention and other
receivables, contract assets and cash and cash
equivalents; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade and other payables, contract liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities and borrowings,
approximate their carrying amounts due to their short-
term maturities.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings classified
under property, plant and equipment and investment
properties are carried at fair value. Details of the fair
value measurement of these leasehold land and
buildings and investment properties are disclosed in
Note 16 and Note 18, respectively.

3 MHFRRERE ()

3.2

EARITERR (FHE 24)
HEERET(E17)
B AERASENY

3.3

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

RAEE ()

2022 2021
—E-F -5
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHEx
42,083 66,574
49,996 70,397
(104,199) (102,964)
(12,120) 34,007
470,521 461,232
N/ATEA 7.4%

FEZZF=A=1+—8  XEHAE
BUSWOR AR RATER -
FZB=Z—F=ZA=+—08 ' GRIEH
RREEEHAEANERECRBRE
EHFER BETAEFEMEYL
BRig& (E1e) o

D RfEMIT

HTAEASRE> (M) (BN
WK - R RE R R E MR~ &
ARFURNERASENY) » REE
B & B 057 (B 48 LAY KRR R EL At BZ A
B BANG  TTESRARKRER) T
BHNEE  HARESHKEERS °

RERADENYL - T ERRZFRRR
Wl Z T+ REFIR A AT o
ZEHR T REFRIREN LA RIE
T2 2ZFED A THOE 16 RME181KE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (cont'd)

Wt 55

3.3

The Group measures its fair value of the financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2022 by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

* Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2022:

As at 31 March 2022
Liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts
— not qualified for hedge accounting

As at 31 March 2021
Liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts
— not qualified for hedge accounting

Level 1
E-F
HK$'000
FBx
F-E-—_f=RA=1+-—H
i
INCZEEY — THERE
FERAX ARSI -
F-B--5=A=+-H
2l
INCEEEN — FHERK
FERAX ARSI -

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

REEEE (&)

A REBEEIT (£)
AERAZATFITEARBZEERRAR
ARABBRNES  TET=F=Z
ZA=Zt+-HBRAAENKzERmI A
ZARE c BREABIEIIIRT R
MAKBARARBELREREMHIN=NER

o HMEHRFHAFEIERTIZN
O (REBE) (B1R) -

o KBRTEIEMBENERNS 2R
FRAGH A RENRARLE 7
hE# (BNFI 4% ) SR (BDR
B8 (E2/R) -

o AFFIMBHIFEBEATNRETHEH
Eavi A BE (BN R AT A 2
B)(E3R) °

TRENAEAT-FT--F=A
St-HRARBEIKESRTA ¢

Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-R F=R Bit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FEx FBT
935 - 935

851 - 851
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical sales
pattern, their subsequent utilisation and other factors
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
estimated net realisable values. The identification of
inventory obsolescence and estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventory and impairment
provision in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

4.2 Provision for impairment of trade and retention

receivables and contract assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s historical default
rates, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The estimation of expected credit losses requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for
the impairment of receivables recognised in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*

BERUHEH TR A

REARFESEL R AR FERHITE G
EF - BREEREESEZBRTHARKS
2 HAE -

REANKRELGEERRER - IEHNSITE
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Rz it RABRIRIT ©
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.3

4.4

Recognition for contract revenue over time

The Group uses the output method in accounting for its
construction contracts for sales and installation of
kitchen collections, and other construction and
decoration works. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is determined
by reference to independent surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted construction income is
determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted construction costs which
mainly comprise sub-contracting charges and costs of
materials are prepared by the management on the basis
of quotations from time to time provided by major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the Group’s
management conducts periodic review on the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the total contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims which may have an
impact in terms of progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Valuation of leasehold land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in an
active market for similar properties. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information from the
valuations of leasehold land and buildings performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. If the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the leasehold land and
buildings may be different and thus may have an impact
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

4

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

EX

4.3

4.4

St T R HIBT ()

CEL LR RN

AEATHARHERZRERIRE N
REMBAREBIRBZIREANR
ArFEEE - BAREERBEETDNKRES
HITIRZRYBESLEHTIENE
BEIMBMEE - AEATEL#HT
HERNREITEIREN AN -
BHURAS RETERSNREMI -
METRBATIREEXSIMHEER
ME - MEIERFAEEZBEIBEA
RMBEA  AEBRREAS R EEE
B HNEERS TR RN U
REBRZARMERE - NEFERK
B 2E  ARAEEERBEI LR
ELHESXGRAERRNEEME -

HTHITEadkE  fURE - XE
NERGAREHNFFHAIEEZH
W MATRE MBI RETRAE -

HETHREFHEE

DA Z BAEIERE LB L FERS
B2 AR & o HER MR AEH
LR H SN T b A B W BA A T EERL
METHREFHTHE LR - fHF
ERXAAEITMAAN  MATLHR
BREZARBERT—H MEE2E
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.5

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred income tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
Management’s assessment is regularly reviewed and
additional deferred income tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5 REVENUE

Sale of goods BREE
Contract revenue Rl e
Timing of revenue recognition: W B IARTE]
— At a point in time —E-IHER
— Over time — BRI

4

B RS IHETH R H W (4

4.5

Lg
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Fri&®

fief 1R 7 B2 A8 AR SR B2 IR B2 F LA 45 3 T
TR MEEFTIS B R B4 R 3 A
BIUS RPN o BEE 7 T #IA 2B AP
ERAFBIFREERFHEE N -
FTERFEAEM - RRBRBOER KR
RMFLZHRBERE - AREEHFH
EEE 2 WME - BERA TR RKE
RBOSEF] > BUE AW EIBEFTEHRA ™ -
N B IAZRIMEB I FRSBLR T o

FEAREEBRPEYNFER - T
EEFREHREZRIELEERHE - K
ERXRGRUIEHTERERLFTER
HZEFMeBABFERB TR
BRZEH - WEXZHKZEWELE
RRE 2 HAR 2 RSB R IBE TS HIK
& o

2022 2021
-5 B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TERT
430,955 381,594
63,637 40,860
494,592 422,454
430,955 381,594
63,637 40,860
494,592 422,454




OTHER INCOME 6
Rental income HEWA

Government grants (Note) BTN (Rt 5E)

Others Hitb

Note:

Government subsidies of HK$730,000 were granted from the one-off Retail
Sector Subsidy Scheme and Construction Sector Subsidy Scheme under Anti-
Epidemic Fund launched by the Government of the Hong Kong SAR.
Remaining subsidies of HK$50,000 granted from The Government of Macao
Special Administrative Region’s 10-Billion-Pataca Fund. The Group has
complied all attached conditions before 31 March 2021 and recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain

— Forward contracts (Note 25)

— Other exchange gain

Fair value (loss)/gain on investment
properties (Note 18)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

COVID-19-related rent concessions

L5 (S51R), s - 48

—ZHE4 (HE25)

— B R s

BREMLH A AE(SHR), s
(B¥>E18)

HEML - | BERIRE TR

2019 BREFHBEXREE TR

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

HAWA
2022 2021
—E-—F -5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THRT
715 604
- 780
1,290 2,327
2,005 3,711

(iD=

REAREBFINITHRXBFABEREESAHN—X
HEEE R B ITRI R — R & b+ T R A9 B
730,000 78 7 ° & T *NE 50,000 78 7T J5 B9 38 1 45 B 1T K
XEANEZREEDESRY - AERAC T2 =—
F=ZR=+-BAMEERHREHEESERER

ALK

Hitt (SH),/ W - 28|

2022 2021
—E-F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
(2,154) 544
634 162
(2,000) 700
(292) (3,847)
2,451 6,028
(1,361) 3,587
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors for
the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:

— Architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom collections
and others segment — importing, wholesale and retail of
architectural builders’ hardware and bathroom
collections and others

— Kitchen collection and furniture segment — designing,
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of kitchen
collections and furniture

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its consolidated financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on the measure of gross profit.
Other operating income and expenses are not allocated to the
operating segments as the information is not regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude current income
tax recoverable, deferred income tax assets, investment
properties, cash and cash equivalents, property, plant and
equipment related to the office premises of the Group and
other corporate assets which are managed on central basis
and are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude current
and deferred income tax liabilities, borrowings, derivative
financial liabilities and other corporate liabilities which are
managed on central basis and are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*
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8

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D)

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers
Reportable segment cost of sales

Reportable segment gross profit

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Reversal of provision
for/(provision for)
inventory obsolescence
Finance income
Finance costs
Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current

segment assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

8 ZHEHER
2022
g F
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
BRES - HEiEE
DAREREM S ELN it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
AR 2 X ShE P 2 SRk 2
362,269 132,323 494,592
ASCIR 2 7 S E R A (244,091) (67,005) (311,096)
LRz 2 EBEF 118,178 65,318 183,496
Yk ~ B RIZETIE
(6,356) (4,201) (10,557)
AR~ ITIH (17,624) (13,027) (30,651)
SR FEHREERE (%)
1,140 94) 1,046
IES PN 159 2 161
Wt 55 %% (1,766) (1,940) (3,706)
SRR EAERTZRETHR
AR 47) 47) (94)
LR 2 2 &R 5 7= 273,603 118,849 392,452
FENIERSN D EE
ZRE 4,292 1,780 6,072
LRz 2 SR 84,126 81,165 165,291

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]
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Wt 55 3R R B E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cONT'D) 8 ZIHEB
2021
B
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
BRAE BEig%E
AR RREAM RRM Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEx TFExT TFHET
Reportable segment revenue ALk 2 XHNE P o BP I 2
from external customers 322,280 100,174 422,454
Reportable segment cost of sales LRz 2 EBEEE AR (207,126) (56,743) (263,869)
Reportable segment gross profit LRz 2 ZRER 115,154 43,431 158,585
Depreciation of property, Pk~ T RIREITIR
plant and equipment (6,162) (4,411) (10,573)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ RE= 7R (23,592) (13,949) (37,541)
Provision for inventory HRFEHREE
obsolescence (1,146) (4,090) (5,236)
Finance income IEJPN 172 6 178
Finance costs W £5%% FA (1,192) (182) (1,374)
Net impairment losses on financial &8 &k &Y &> ZRESH
and contract assets R (85) (54) (139)
Reportable segment assets LR 2 2 2R = 300,221 84,781 385,002
Additions to non-current segment  FERIER 5 A~
assets during the year ZNE 1,837 2,305 4,142
Reportable segment liabilities L3Rz 2 EB A 99,752 73,917 173,669
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Reportable segment gross profit

Group gross profit

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Deferred income tax assets
Current income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Other corporate assets

Group assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Other corporate liabilities

Group liabilities

LRz 0 &EF

EHAER

LRz 0 B R

il - T ERIEE
RER

B SE PG TR
AW E AR E RS
RNERASENY
H bl 7=

KHAE

LR 2 0 &R

B

PR S B R
PTE RS
BIEFREHR AR
H b £ 457

S H

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

2 EBE R (&)

FERATWLHRZELEDBE

AR SR RS

BEMEHMRZEEVSHENKMT

2022 2021
—E-— B - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
183,496 158,585
183,496 158,585
392,452 385,002
196,116 171,510
- 32,300

5,873 7,019
3,136 3,604
104,199 102,964
448 279
702,224 702,678
2022 2021
—EsE-— B - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHR Fi#
165,291 173,669
40,962 44 834
5,066 2,325
935 851
18,900 19,276
549 491
231,703 241,446
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8

SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D) 8

Geographical information

2 EBEF ()
it X 2 5169 %

Non-current assets
(excluding financial assets

Revenue from external and deferred income tax
customers assets)

R EF (FEBESRBE™

XHE R RiE EFTEHR =)
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-_—F —EBE-—5F —E_—__—F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TEx FHET FET
Hong Kong (domicile) BB (EEELS) 480,283 409,579 312,548 340,507
PRC FE 14,309 12,875 2,058 2,825
Total Bit 494,592 422,454 314,606 343,332

The geographical location of customers is determined based
on the location at which the goods were delivered. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is determined
based on the physical location of the assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, approximately
HK$53,605,000 or approximately 11% of the Group’s
revenue was derived from a single external customer (2021:
no single customer contributed over 10% of the Group’s
revenue).

ERBXUERBEINEMAELETE - 3F
R AF 2 X ENREZE ™ 2 KR E
MiE o

BE-BE--FE=ZA=1+—HLEE &X&H
Wz H£9 53,605,000 B TRAY 11%KEE—X
NEF(ZE-—F HEE—FFREFREHA
W= 10%) ©

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 JFxMR

2022 2021
—E-—F -5
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET
Employee benefit expenses (Note 11) RIBRZH (FHET) 72,100 64,506
Government grant (Note 11) BUFHME (BE5E11) - (7,176)
Auditor’s remuneration BB &
— Audit services — BBRE 1,770 1,700
— Non-audit services — EEBRS 195 195
Cost of inventories (Note 20) FH A (£ 20) 294,322 235,633
Depreciation of property, Pk~ TR RIEEITIA (FHE16)
plant and equipment (Note 16) 16,763 16,269
Depreciation of right-of-use asset EARCEIR (HE17)
(Note 17) 30,651 37,541
Expenses relating to short-term lease A T % (BE17)
(Note 17) 4,983 1,283
Direct operating expenses arising FERSWAZRED L
from investment properties that HERZEFX
generated rental income 118 108
(Reversal of provision for)/provision TEtES (RERE), k& (KE20)
for inventory obsolescence (Note 20) (1,046) 5,236

HETRRERA T2021/225 £k 155
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10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

11

Finance costs

Bank borrowings

Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(Note 17)

Finance income
Bank interest income

Finance costs, net

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and allowances,
including directors” emoluments
Pension costs — defined
contribution plans
Other long-term employee benefits
Government grants (Note)

10 MM #8@

W55 A

RITER
HEEAGRR ST X (FHE17)
EL O

RATF S WA

WMEHRA -

11

FEhEY  BERESHE

RARERA — RERRITR

HitKHE AEF
UM (B 5E)

During the year, forfeited contributions totalling HK$2,000
(2021: Nil) were used to reduce the current year’s level of
contributions and there was no forfeited contribution
available at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$2,000) to reduce

future years’ contributions.

Note:

2022 2021
B F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
1,386 1,374
2,351 2,950
3,737 4,324
(161) (178)
3,576 4,146
RITREFZH

2022 2021
—_g—-— s —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
68,432 61,997
2,468 2,209
1,200 300

- (7,176)

72,100 57,330

FARFE 2Rl ARt

T—F R EATRIARFERARKTE M

it2,0008 T (=F

FoEZF=ZA=1+—-—BHEBEE RUHEIK
(ZB=—45 :2,00087T) AAAT RV RKE

=k
E #\m °

BSE -

Wage subsidies of approximately HK$7,176,000 were granted from the Hong
Kong SAR Government’s Employment Support Scheme under Anti-Epidemic
Fund for the use of paying wages of employees from June to November 2020.

AEARESEBHINTRXBEHEREES K HNFE
ol ] *MUETTRI B TR INEL 7,176,00058 T » HAFX
NRIZE-TEAAE+—A2HL -
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(@)

Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to
the directors of the Company are as follows:

2022

Executive directors

TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

TSE Sun Wai, Albert

TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

LAU Shiu Sun

Independent non-executive directors
WONG Wah, Dominic

WAN Sze Chung

Luk Wang Kwong

WITES

A (£7%)
B 5

GHE (EERLH)
BEXR

X B H

MU FRTES
HiE

BB

iy

12 EEZRAMERBERAE&HSHMH

Ax

(@ EEZHFH

ENENNANREES2MELFTNT ¢

- S - =
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees  and bonus scheme Total
RAIER
it&lz
EEHe HFepwda BEMK Bit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FTEx FExT FTER
100 2,157 12 2,269
100 3,732 - 3,832
100 3,214 18 3,332
100 2,504 18 2,622
100 1,616 18 1,734
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
824 13,223 66 14,113

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (cONT'D)

(@) Directors’ remuneration (cont'd)

2021

Executive directors RITES

TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) WHE(EF)

TSE Sun Wai, Albert B

TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)  #i#i= (EEK4E)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin BN

LAU Shiu Sun X B H

Independent non-executive directors MM EHITES

WONG Wah, Dominic i
WAN Sze Chung BB
Luk Wang Kwong iy

No directors have waived or agreed to waive their
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022
(2021: Nil).

12

BEECEARNERERES T M
At )
(@ EEZHFM (L)
B
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees  and bonus scheme Total
RKEF
Itz
EEHE HFEeRE4 REMR Bt

HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TR T THET

100 2,318 18 2,436
100 3,541 - 3,641
100 3,010 18 3,128
100 2,288 18 2,406
100 1,566 18 1,684
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
108 - - 108

824 12,723 72 13,619

BE-E-__F=ZA=1+—HLEE"
HALTEERFRRERAERSE WS (=
F-—F:F)o
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNnT'D)

(b)

(c)

(d

(e)

®

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and controlled entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2022, there are no loans, quasi-loans or
other dealings in favour of the directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 32, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Key management personnel

The Group regards the executive directors as the key
management personnel. Details of the remuneration
paid to them are set out in (a).

12

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

EECEARNGRAEBRESHM
Ax &)

(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)

®

ESZRAFZERERER
FH - BLESCWEEE REEME
ARFZLBRBR(ZB=—F 1 E) -

RIRRUESHRSMA TFE=ZTAM

FEE-_ZE-_—_F=A=+—HLHFE "
AEAHLTREMNE=FREESRS
mMEEZAAN (ZB=Z—F . E) -

FXRES - SZSEERFNZEAR
BRZEEENXREETFEENER
KURRRERESNEHMAIZNER
F-E-_—_F=A=+—H HAEXEE
B -FRSESERANEARKRZE
ESWREFZHRIBEHEMER - RL5
FREREENEHMRZ (ZE=—F
x) o

ESEXRS  ZHAGHNEANEG

BRTHOE2IREBEN  REERARFLE
B ARBAHAEETEANSAERA LS
BEAMALNBDESHEERAZEETH
BENBEZEERS - ZHEMEY -

REEEAR
REANARTESHREEEAR
N TFRENMESFERTE @M -
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (cONT'D)

(g

12

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2021: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to
the five highest paid individual during the year are as
follows:

(g

Salaries and allowances
Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

HEREW
RAREEA — RERKITL

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands (in HK$)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

A B (BT

1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7& T
2,000,001 & JTZE 2,500,000 78 7T
2,500,001 & 7T £ 3,000,000 & 5T
3,000,001 & T £ 3,500,000 & 5T
3,500,001 & T ZE 4,000,000 /& 7T

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

EECEIARNGERAEBRESTM
AL &)

AERSHMAL
FRNREHAzAEREFHALEEN
(ZE=—F O ES REME
EIHT EXIIRZDFTA - FAEX
NHEEEZNTFHEERSHFMA L 2 M
LU

2022 2021

B F s

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TR

13,358 12,926

66 72

13,424 12,998
HENTFUTER :

Number of individuals

AH
2022 2021
—E_—__—fF —E-—4F
1 1
1 2
1 _
1 1
1 1



13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group

is 25% (2021: 25%) for the year.

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
PRC enterprise income tax

Total current tax
Deferred taxation (Note 26)

Income tax expense

IEGE R
BHENEH
HhE R SR

IR RP=R
15 FE LI (Pt 5% 26)

FEBIT

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax
rates in the region in which the Group operates as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax
rates applicable to profits in the
respective region

Effect of tax reduction in current year

Tax effect of recognition of
previously unrecognised tax loss

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses

Unrecognised tax losses

Income tax expense

BR A 1SHE BT S A

AR o< 3 X5 A& 49 AN 3t
TTERH I

N ERLTURL D B2 18
BN ERBINR ISR
B

BARBULA
TAMNBLTT 2
HAFERBINRIS R
REIABITT 1R

FEBiIT <

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

13 FB8AX

FEBNEBR D URNEEGITRIRBEFIZRE
16.5%(ZFE=—F :16.5%) ITIREK®E - TR
FE > AEAPEHELADNERREN25%

(ZEBZ—5F 1 25%) °

2022 2021
—ECCF s —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
2,877 2,670
622 1
3,499 2,671
189 (845)
3,688 1,826

FEABXBRHRIEDEFN 2 HASBERBE
SEREEHRENBX A HEmMITE 2 Eie

BRlzZSMT :
Group
REH
2022 2021
—E-—F B - —=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TR
15,582 12,595
BE
2,397 1,299
(110) (97)
(365) (427)
(34) (1,457)
477 443
(66) (10)
1,389 2,075
3,688 1,826
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14 DIVIDENDS 14 BRE
(@ Dividends declared and paid during the year @ TAFEERRREZES
2022 2021
B F /-5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEx
Final dividend in respect of 2021 of TE-F2RERE
HKO.5 cent (2021: in respect of BROSEBI(ZE=-—4%F :
2020 of HK0.5 cent) per share “ETFRBRE
R 0.5584L) 3,003 3,003
Interim dividend in respect of 2022 of ~ZTZZ&FFhHRE
HKO.5 cent (2021: in respect of FROSBIN(=ZBE=—F
2021 of HKO.5 cent) per share —E-—FE R
0.5 84L) 3,003 3,003
6,006 6,006
(b) Dividends for the year b)) FERE
2022 2021
—E-= - —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Interim dividend of HKO.5 cent REIRR S =A% 0.5 B
(2021: HKO.5 cent) per share ZEZ—F 1 05%84) 3,003 3,003
Proposed final dividend of HK1 cent BURARER SRR 17840
(2021: HKO.5 cent) per share (Note) (ZZ2=—5F : 0.584L) (HHE) 6,006 3,003
9,009 6,006
Note: B3 -
Final dividends have been proposed by the directors after the reporting ESTREARBIURARGRE - ZRUKRE
date. The proposed dividends, subject to the shareholders’ approval at (BEBRARTRBRERBF RS EHE) FTRB
the forthcoming annual general meeting, are not reflected as dividend AFZBZZF=ZA=+—-BZMKRE °

payable as at 31 March 2022.
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15 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic @
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the

profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by

the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to equity owners RATFE SR SRF
of the Company

Number of ordinary shares in issue ERTEBRBRE(TR)
(thousands)

Diluted (b)
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March

2022 is the same as the basic earnings per share as there

were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued

(2021: Nil).

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

15 BRER

E-¥N
BREFNZFNDIREALCTDABENS
BHRUFERERITEBRRBITE -

2022 2021
—EBC-CF —B-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER THBT
11,894 10,769
600,600 600,600

W
ATHECATEERELER  WE
ECEC-E=ZA=t+—-HLEEZS
BREBEENESESRERNZFER(ZZ
——F:X)e
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Yl - TERIER
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings  Leasehold fixtures and Motor
(Note) improvements equipment vehicles Total
BELH
REF HE M RE
(F3E) il %45 Rig%E AE Bit
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn BT FTEn FEx FER
Net book value KT 2{E
At 31 March 2020 F-_R-FEE=ZH=+—-H 152,300 20,543 1,895 319 175,057
Additions nNE 78,161 5,690 592 - 84,443
Disposal HeE - (3,336) (511) - (3,847)
Depreciation (Note 9) 18 (HE9) (8,399) (7,338) (403) (129) (16,269)
Revaluation ERr 6,338 - - - 6,338
Exchange difference [HER - 125 43 1 169
At 31 March 2021 F-E=--F=A=1+—H 228,400 15,684 1,616 191 245,891
Transfer from investment property %3 R &4 (Fff3 18)

(Note 18) 30,300 - - - 30,300
Additions FE - 6,140 181 - 6,321
Disposal e - (313) - (16) (329)
Depreciation (Note 9) 118 (B5E9) (8,721) (7,483) (436) (123) (16,763)
Revaluation ERr 3,721 - - - 3,721
Exchange difference LRESR - 12 7 2 21
At 31 March 2022 F-E--E=A=1+—H 253,700 14,040 1,368 54 269,162
At 31 March 2021 F-E--5=A=1+-H
Valuation e 228,400 - - - 228,400
Cost PES - 80,379 20,525 1236 102,140
Accumulated depreciation 2R - (64,695) (18,909) (1,045) (84,649)
Net book amount TKE$1E 228,400 15,684 1,616 191 245,891
At 31 March 2022 F-E--#=A=+-AH
Valuation g 253,700 - - - 253,700
Cost R - 84,495 20,730 1,093 106,318
Accumulated depreciation 2iHFIA - (70,455) (19,362) (1,039) (90,856)
Net book amount W3 (E 253,700 14,040 1,368 54 269,162

164 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D) 16 ¥l - T BERIRE ()

Note: i 3E
If leasehold land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the AR+ REFDRALEAEEZS B
amounts would be as follows: T
2022 2021
—EF —EZ—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFEx
Cost 2% 143,265 112,965
Accumulated depreciation Kt (12,906) (10,041)
Net book amount K2 {E 130,359 102,924
Bank borrowings are secured by the leasehold land and buildings in Hong RATEF L RIKEE LI 160,600,000 8T (=F=—F
Kong with a total carrying amount of approximately HK$160,600,000 (2021: £9166,233,00078 70 ) 2 & B R £ 1 R B F AR 57 (MY
approximately HK$166,233,000) (Note 24). E24) °
The following table analyses the leasehold land and buildings TRUMBEZEDTRAEIIK AR LK
carried at fair value, by valuation method. BE o

Fair value measurements using
RATHZEMZAREITE

Quoted
prices in
active Significant Significant
markets for other unobservable
identical observable inputs
assets inputs (Level 3)
Description BR (Level 1) (Level 2) (Note)
HER>T EXREA ERFHA
TEERT 7 AME  NEMALKE
Z3RH AR (5=F)
(5—F=&) (B=R) (B3E)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TFET TET
As at 31 March 2022 F-—B-——H=H=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements &4 A AEITE
— Leasehold land and buildings ~ — & +# R - - 253,700
As at 31 March 2021 F-—E=--5=HB=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements Z&M4AREITE
— Leasehold land and buildings ~ — &+ # R &S - - 228,400
Note: i 3E
For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the asset or liability are REZEMTZ2ARETEMS  BRERARZHAR
not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). PEFHAE LA T B T 37 2038 (BN AT ML ER S A 203 ) 0 Bt ©

HETRRERA T2021/225 £k 165
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

Opening balance FAER

Addition nE

Transfer from investment property  #ER&Y Ll (F3E18)
(Note 18)

Depreciation 18

Gain/(loss) on revaluation recognised F H & EWHTINZ
in other comprehensive income EKE(51H)

Closing balance FARLE R

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were valued at 31
March 2022 by an independent and qualified valuer, Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the
locations and segments of the leasehold land and buildings
valued.

The Group's finance department includes a team that reviews
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
board of directors. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the review team and the valuer
annually.

16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*

Ml - TR RIRR (&)

AEAZHEEANTHERASBLAAERZRZ AR
BeEHRBEREHLEE  BINEXARER
RrEARKH -FHN - F—F - F-ERSE
ZRZBHTES

MAERTARNERMARE (F=RF) 22RE
g

Leasehold land and buildings

AT REF

2022 2021
B F s —5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
228,400 152,300
- 78,161
30,300 -
(8,721) (8,399)
3,721 6,338
253,700 228,400

RER 2 HERE

REH 2 MR L REFHINT S EEMEEID
BRAENTMTERABDT-B-_-F=A
=t—BfE  LEETSERXANTZLRE
% BREEETHAL W REFHELRE S
BRHATIEE -

REAMSEHEE -XFWFIRE B O H IR
MAREITATREAT (A E < HRA - ZENEZERE

2LHR - HEANESFSHEMTISEHER
BRER-
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D) 16

Valuation processes of the Group (cont’d)

Level 3 fair values of leasehold land and buildings have been
derived using the direct comparison approach, which
basically uses the comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market to derive the fair value of the
properties. Sale prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
time of transactions, property size and location. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is the market
unit rate.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs

TR MR AL FANEHARIECE

Market unit rate Office: HK$18,300 to HK$18,400 (2021:
R LS HK$19,400 to HK$19,600) per square feet

of saleable area
Bx#  TAEREFHR18,300ETE 18,400
BT (ZEZ—5 1 19,4008 TE 19,6008 7T)

Shop: HK$80,300 (2021: HK$77,800) per
square feet of saleable area

JEH  XAEREFHIRE0,300BT(ZF=—
% :77,800787T)

Warehouse: HK$3,600 (2021: HK$3,600)
per square feet of saleable area

He: XAERSFHR300BT(ZF=—
£ 13,6008 7T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

Wl - B RIZE ()

RER 2z fhERRE (£)
HEITMRBEF2EZEARENEREEL
BURBH « EBHBUE—RFIBAXTH LA
EEZARLREERZEE IR E - 4B
i XA E LB 2 ENERRZHE 1)
VHRKGRQEERHRZERERFE - It
HEEZBRERBARBENTZENE -

BXRFAAERFTANERMABE(BF=R) 22
ARETEZHER

Relationship of unobservable inputs
of fair value
DAEMSRAANERABEZXR

The higher the market unit rate, the

higher the fair value
RN ERS - AREBS

FRMEFERTED) -
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17 LEASES 17 #H&E
This note provides information for leases where the Group is REDEREARAENABAZBAETESR
a lessee.
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of @ THEEMFRRIRATINZEH

financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following balances relating to the leases:

Right-of-use assets 1 AR =
Properties Pplb

Lease liabilities bRt
Current s
Non-current R

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31 March 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$10,867,000 (2021: approximately HK$30,284,000).

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (b)
comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
shows the following amounts relating to the leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use AU 23T IBFT < (ME9)
assets (Note 9)

Expenses relating to short-term BEXREHERT I Z (HHE9)
leases (Note 9)

Interest expense (Note 10) B (KHFE10)

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31
March 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$36,241,000 (2021: approximately HK$34,448,000).
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GAMFSRARIITUTSHEEXZ
ik

2022 2021
B F /-5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
45,444 65,141
27,902 28,477
22,094 41,920
49,996 70,397

BE-_F-__F=RA=+—HLEE"
ANEFRPRT410,867,00058TT (=&
——% 1 £30,284,00087T) °

THELEBBERABINZEH

GAELHEWERIIRUTSHETAEXZ
o i

2022 2021
—E-F '
HK$’000 HK$"000
TR FHET
30,651 37,541
4,983 1,283
2,351 2,950

BE-Z-—_F=-A=+—RHLEE"
HEZEMERELH RN 36,241,000 T
(ZEZ—% 1 £934,448,000/87T) °
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18

LEASES (CONT'D) 17 &

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are (0 FTEAZERIEIREAKSR

accounted for

The Group leases various properties including retail
shops, warehouse and office premises. The lease terms
are between one to four years. MU o

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that IR BRI o
are held by the lessor.

AEAEBZTYL - SHEETERE
HHEeREFEYPL - HENF-—=

HMENHEERER . AEEZNHTE
Z B EAM o I K N (AT
R ETHRAAFEZERER H 2

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 AL
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
At 1 April THEA—H 32,300 31,600
Fair value (loss)/gains recognised ERBWINLAE(TR) W
in the profit or loss (2,000) 700
Transfer to property, ®BEYDL - BRIEE (FHE16)
plant and equipment (Note 16) (30,300) -
At 31 March F=A=+—H - 32,300
The fair value (losses)/gains on investment properties is BRAYLHARE (SR),WETDITALRE
included in “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated HWERANTEA(SHR) RS - 28] (Kt
statement of comprehensive income (Note 7). E7) e

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]
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18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D) 18

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs:

BRI (&)

BXEREATTNRHAREOAAEILE
HAR

Fair value measurements using
RATHETz AR EITE

Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HER~T ERHAM EDN
SEERT 7 EIRNE EIRES
23N BALSE BMALE
Description BoR (B8—R) (2=R) (B=R)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TFET T TFE T
As at 31 March 2021 F=B=--H=A=+—H

Recurring fair value measurements ZE#HAREITE
— Investment properties — REW

- - 32,300

During the year ended 31 March 2022, property located in
Hong Kong was transferred from investment properties to
property, plant and equipment. The valuation as at the
transfer date is undertaken by an independent and qualified
valuer, Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited.

As at 31 March 2021, valuations were undertaken by an
independent and qualified valuer, Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited. The valuation processes are the same as the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for own use
(Note 16).

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs

TR ER A 048 TAMERABETE

Market unit rate HK$18,400 (2021: HK$19,600) per square feet

minEME of saleable area
THEREFARISLI0BT(ZFE=-—F:
19,6008 7T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques used
during the year.

BE-ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—-HULEFE UTE
BHYL B RELEZEYL - T ERIEE o
TFTEEBHZAEIEDHRY S REMEEID
BFENITIHITERNTHIT

T-E--%=A=+—R8 - HEIFEIHE
NERKMEMETENITMTER L B #
T-HESESHIFMFEANBERLBRET
ZEfEHE (M 16) °

BXFRAEATANEMALRE (BE=R) 22
RETEZEH

Relationship of unobservable inputs
of fair value
DREFSRIAINEMABRE 2 KR

The higher the market unit rate, the higher
the fair value
TIENERS - AREBS

FRMEETERTE -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19 KE QNG

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2022:

Name of subsidiary

WEAFAEH

Accord Sky Limited
Accord Sky Limited
Asia Bon Company Limited

ER (M) B ERERAF

Asia Richly Limited
THEEERAR

Bonco Ironmongery Limited
REREEHARLR
Cypress Design Limited
MARITARAR

D.LY. Limited

D.LY. Limited

E. Bon Building Materials
Company Limited

RATRRMHERAT
H20 (Pro) Limited

k2 RRRAR
Kitchen (Pro) Limited
B2 ERRAT

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited
£2(FR)BRLT
Massford (Shanghai) Limited*

2 (LB neBERAR
XE (LB R2BERAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

L/ RIR

Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
95

Hong Kong
&2

Hong Kong
B2
Hong Kong
&2
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
B2
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
&2
Hong Kong
B2

PRC

HE

Particulars of
issued share capital

BRITRARE

1,000,000 ordinary shares

1,000,000 RE @R
100 ordinary shares
100 RE B

1 ordinary share

1REBR

10,000 ordinary shares
10,000 & B

1 ordinary share
1REER

2 ordinary shares
2REBR

6,000 ordinary shares

6,000 RE B

2 ordinary shares
2REBR

1,000 ordinary shares
1,000 RE AR

10,000 ordinary shares

10,000 REER

US$$250,000

250,000 70

Legal structure

EEEH

Company with limited liabilities
BREELR
Company with limited liabilities

ARRELE

Company with limited liabilities

BRRELH
Company with limited liabilities

ARRAELT

al

Company with limited liabilities
BRRAAH
Company with limited liabilities

ARRALT

all

Company with limited liabilities

BRREAT
Company with limited liabilities

ARRALT

al

Company with limited liabilities
BRFEAH

Company with limited liabilities

BRRELT

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

2HREL

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

ATHTZB-_F=RA=1T—HZEEME
NEEE

Equity interest held

FrERAR
2022 2021
—B--F CZEC--F
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities and place of operation

FRUSRELSR

Retail sales of kitchen collections and
furniture through retail shops in
Hong Kong

BUTEETERSEHERR
REREA

Property holding in Hong Kong
TEEENLER

Property holding in Hong Kong
TEEFNLEE

Importing and sale of architectural builders’
hardware in Hong Kong

TEEHORHERRTS

Consulting services for interior design and
fitting out works

ERRIREB IR ZEARS

Handling of human resources planning and
development activities of the Group
REXEAADRFANRRRZE
Importing and sale of architectural builders’
hardware and bathroom collections in
Hong Kong
TEREARHERNAS R DARE

Importing and sale of bathroom collections
in Hong Kong
TEEHORHEDMEE

Importing, sale and installation of kitchen
collections in Hong Kong

TEBED  HERZRBRRE

Supply of architectural builders” hardware
and bathroom collections for property
development in Hong Kong

TREMUEREERIAEET
MLRERA

Supplying architectural builders” hardware
and bathroom collections for property
development in Shanghai

TLE#NRNESRIARET
Mz RSB
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The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent
management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of these
subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

*

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22
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19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (coNnT'D) 19 MER RN (%)
Place of
incorporation/  Particulars of
Name of subsidiary establishment issued share capital Legal structure Equity interest held Principal activities and place of operation
WERRAEH /RIS BRTREKEE EELEH A FTRUFREDBR
2022 2021
—g-CF CZB--%
Oriental Forward Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Property Holding in Hong Kong
RAKEERLT BB TREBR BRRELT TREENLER
Oriental Longway Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Property Holding in Hong Kong
FAKERRLT &l 1REBR BRRELT TREENLER
Right Century Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares ~ Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Retail sales of bathroom accessories and
decoration materials through retail shops
in Hong Kong
BIERAT B2 1,000 REBR ARRELT ERREETEETEHEDA
B REEHH
Shanghai Tech Pro International  PRC US$300,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural builders
Trading Company Limited* hardware and bathroom collections in
LEERERRAERAT the PRC
LEEREFRZERAR  HE 300,000 EMERL THEEOREERAIER DARE
Shanghai Techpro Interior PRC RMBS5,000,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100% 100%  Undertaking interior decoration and project
Decoration Company Limited* management for property development
LESRENEHERAT in the PRC
LEERENENERAT  +E ARM50000007T  £5ERL THERRENRERAREERST
MLEERE
Sunny Building and Decoration - Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares  Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Retail sales of architectural builders
Materials Company Limited hardware and bathroom collections
through retail shops in Hong Kong
MAEGHAEETEERAR &8 6,000 EER ARRELT EUREETEATEHERNTS
RIARZ
Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares ~ Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural builders
hardware
EREMRAERLT &k 1,000 RE B ARRALT HOREERATS
VIA (Shanghai) Limited* PRC US$250,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100% 100%  Importing and sale of bathroom, furniture
£0 (LB RABEERAT and kitchen collections in Shanghai
£ (LB RABEERAR E 250,000 %7 £/ Gyl TLEEAREEDR  ZARBERE

[38E7

ERVEVHEEERFETIXEHMROEF -
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INVENTORIES

Finished goods llo

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
“cost of sales” amounted to approximately HK$294,322,000
(2021: approximately HK$235,633,000).

As at 31 March 2022, finished goods with cost of
approximately HK$31,643,000 (2021: approximately
HK$32,436,000) were considered as obsolete.

The movement in the provision for inventory obsolescence is
as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year FOES

(Reversal of)/provision for inventory SEtES (KE)HRE
obsolescence

Exchange difference LCHRES

Balance at end of the year FERGES

20 F#%

2022 2021
|- &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER THT
115,420 142,451

BWINATT AT ATHERAK | 2FHRAY
79294,322,0008 T( = B = — F: 4
235,633,000 7T) ©

FTo2--F=A=+-H IEHmZR
A4 H31,643,0008 T(=ZFB = — F: 4
32,436,000/ 7T) ©

TR FHEEZEHWMT
2022 2021
—E - —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT THT
32,436 26,916
(1,046) 5,236
253 284
31,643 32,436

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]
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21 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21 MWK - NWRE K - Hfth NI

CONTRACT ASSETS AREHNEF
Details of the trade, retention, other receivables and contract FoFE--F=A=+—HB2ZRBKR * MK
assets as at 31 March 2022 are listed below: RER - HtNBWREEAR~FBEOT ¢
2022 2021
B F s —5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER T
Trade receivables R KR 124,584 78,356
Less: provision for impairment of trade & : SIWIKFREK Z
receivables (859) (720)
123,725 77,636
Retention receivables RIYAR B =R 2,645 1,161
Less: provision for impairment of B MR B RURE R Z
retention receivables (288) (285)
126,082 78,512
Contract assets BHR” 4,344 4,364
Less: provision for impairment of B EARFRERS
contract assets (6) (39)
130,420 82,837
Other receivables, deposits and HMMWR - BRI
prepayments 28,570 20,471
158,990 103,308
Less: non-current portion B EENEIE D
Retention receivables MUTRE =X (272) (150)
Deposits Be (5,731) (5,724)
Current portion BRER &R 5 152,987 97,434
All non-current receivables are due within five years from the FEAEREE D 2 MR E T B IREBERE
end of the respective reporting dates. TRFREN -
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21 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21
CONTRACT ASSETS (coNT'D)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date
by invoice date is as follows:

1-90 days 1Z90K
91-365 days 91 E365K
Over 365 days B 365X

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30
to 90 days, while some customers are granted an extended
credit period of up to 120 days.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a life time
expected loss allowance for all trade and retention receivables
and contract assets. Information about the impairment of
these receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk is
set out in Note 3.1(c).

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

MWK - MWRER - HbUk
FREHNEF™ ()

B TIRE B 2K (URZBITE) 247
LU

2022 2021
B B —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
60,766 47,448
28,157 17,965
35,661 12,943
124,584 78,356

FEAZHEFHBABINI0E0X M
BABRFHEAMITRERERS 120K -

RNEHF R AEEMSIRE AN E S HLET
EMMBERTHR - X ATE R KRR & SR BB
BUREARFFEALEMBSHREE - BX
ZE R FRTURE & AN 55 15 BT WUBG B Rt 88
FHE3.1(C)
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CONTRACT ASSETS (cONT'D)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %&&

21 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21

The movement in the provision of expected credit loss on
trade, retention receivables and contract assets is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Loss allowance for the year
Exchange difference

Balance at end of the year

FHNE R
FATHRKZ
CHRES

FARER

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying values of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values (2021: same).

Details of contract assets are as follows:

Contract assets related to contract work

BEXREATIENENAF

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting from
contract work when revenue recognised exceeds the amount

billed to the customer.

Wt 55 3R R B E

LUK 3K - B URAR BB RK - H At Ri Uk
AREHNE ()

BIURIKER ~ RWIRBR R AN AR~ 2THE R

SIRBEEEHOT

2022 2021

—E- & B - —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

1,044 878

94 139

15 27

1,153 1,044

FT=F--F=A= -I——EI ST TR e EL Al
MWHRZzKEESHEARERE (ZB—F

HE) °
EHRFHFBNOT ¢
2022 2021
—E-—F B - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
4,383 4,364

SARFEFECHIANEEIAEFK
HKENEHNEN TR ENRRIK
BEE -
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22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 HERASENY

2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$"000
FET TR
Cash at bank and on hand RITEREFLAS 104,199 102,964
As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s cash and bank balances of TZEZZF=ZA=+—H  XEHZAER
approximately HK$2,902,000 (2021: approximately RITHIR2,902,0008 T (ZFB=—F: 4
HK$3,152,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC, where 3,152,000 70) ETEAREZRIT  SLRZ I
the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control. CERBIES) o
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was TZ2ZZF=ZA=+t—H  BEHERITERZ
0.20% (2021: 0.17%) per annum as at 31 March 2022. EREREN0.20% (ZFZ—F 1 0.17%) °

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 23 RifSRREMBFRREN AR
LIABILITIES

2022 2021

—E-—F s —F

HK$/000 HK$'000

FTRT THBRT

Trade payables IVARELL 19,999 25,115
Accrued charges and other payables RIit5 AR HAB R 14,387 10,860
Contract liabilities EAR B 75,337 42,248
Other provision Hiik & 5,000 3,800
114,723 82,023

Less: non-current portion A JEENERER

Other provision Hittik & (5,000) (3,800)
Current portion BNEAER 5 109,723 78,223

HETRRERA T2021/225 £k 177
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23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (coNT'D)

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting date
by invoice date is as follows:

0-90 days 0E90K
91-365 days 91 ZE365 K
Over 365 days 365K

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying values of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values (2021: same).

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Contract liabilities for unsatisfied
performance obligations

REARFEED A

Contract liabilities consist of consideration received (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer for
unsatisfied performance obligations.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to
carried-forward contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was included
in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*

(8r)

23 NNKRREMEARREHNNE

BN TRE B 2R (URRBITE) 247

mT
2022 2021
—E- & B - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THET
13,513 19,612
4,346 2,744
2,140 2,759
19,999 25,115

FIEF=A=+—8 MR REAM
NNEFRZKEESEARERE (ZE=—F:

HE) o
BHANFEFBOT ¢
2022
—E-—F
HK$’000
FET
75,337

2021

s —5F
HK$'000
TEx

42,248

BANREBERRABAREECHET RN (R

FHERMNEH) o

TRERSEHRSANFEERNAREREE

BIARE S

2022
—E-_—F
HK$’000
FET

TAFNEANGEHRNCHINES

36,148

2021
-5
HK$"000
THEx

11,721

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



24 BORROWINGS

Current
Secured
— Bank loans

Unsecured
— Trust receipt loans

24

BN A
B

— RITHER

IR
— ERWERK

Trust receipt loans are mainly denominated in HK$ or EUR.

All bank loans are denominated in HKS$.

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s borrowings were repayable
based on contractual repayment terms as follows:

Within one year

In the second year

In the third to fifth year
Over fifth year

—5R

BFMA
BE=FEEAFN
BEYERF

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$40,962,000 (2021:
approximately HK$44,834,000) are secured by leasehold
land and buildings of the Group of approximately
HK$160,600,000 (2021: approximately HK$166,233,000)

(Note 16).

The fair value of borrowings, which carry interest at floating

rates, equals their carrying amounts.

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

&=
2022 2021
|- &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER THT
40,962 44,834
1,121 21,740
42,083 66,574

EREERRZ
FrBHRITERZ

AR s

FHERMEBNBTIKS -
EEEMANBIT -

FE__F=A=+—8  XEAJRES

NERHREE 2 ERWAT -

2022 2021
—Es-—F s
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TERT
4,832 25,607
3,793 3,712
7,848 7,673
25,610 29,582
42,083 66,574

RITERN40,962,000 8 T(ZBE-—F 1 4
44,834,000 T ) 2R M AR £ HA W H A
160,600,000 T( = & = — F: 4
166,233,00058 70) 2 35 + i R AR /R 39 (B

E16) ©

MAEFHREZERZDR

EERHAEKEE -
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24

25

BORROWINGS (cONT'D)

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

Floating rate: FAFER
— Expiring within one year — —FRNEH

The effective interest rate is 2.6% per annum (2021: 3.6% per
annum) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities for the year ended 31 March 2022 and
2021.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Not qualified for hedge THEXH2ITRE
accounting
Foreign exchange forward ISOZEEEY » BHE
contract, at market value (BfF3%)
(Note)
Note:

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Sell HKD for EUR BHBLAKRS

24 B

REABUT R A ZRERH -

2022 2021
B F /-5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
186,730 174,037

BE-E--F=-A=+—-HLEEZXKRE
FIBN2.6% (ZB=—5 :13.6%) °

TEE-E-HER-E--F=ZA=1t—H
LFE  AEACETHEEET o MHRiE -

25 fTE€mIA

2022 2021
—E-CF B
Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
B Wik B’rE kA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHExT FET TET
- (935) - (851)
B5E -

FoECCERSSS-FZ P+ AHKFEZHN
CEMEN2E LA LTMT :

2022 2021
—E-CF B —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTRET THET
43,745 27,371
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26 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities

BBEFTS B

1 E TS BN 45

The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are

as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

At T April TmA-H

(Charged)/credited to profit ~ (1B) /1T At
or loss

Exchange difference LRER

At 31 March F=A=t+-H

Deferred income tax liabilities

A1 April FmA—A
Charged to other N EtEERE

comprehensive income
Charged to profitor loss 1B R %

At 31 March F=A=1+-H

26 BEFRBH
2022 2021
|- &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER THT
5,873 7,019
(18,900) (19,276)
(13,027) (12,257)

REZRERBRS AERNX A FBLEHE
REEZBRLEREHR AT RAGEHFE W

T
BIEFRBBA
Decelerated tax
Tax losses depreciation Provision Total
RIS R HIEBIT IR S Aif
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—®B-C-f —®E--f —F--fF —F--F —F--F —F--F -B--E —B--§
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TR TER TiEn FTER TR TER TR
4,211 4,167 8,834 7,189 805 536 13,850 11,892
(1,708) 44 1,772 1,645 (187) 220 (123) 1,909
- - - - 33 49 33 49
2,503 4211 10,606 8,834 651 805 13,760 13,850
1 SE R B AR

Revaluation of properties  Accelerated tax depreciation Total

Ml Efk MEBIRIA Hit
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--fF - ZB-Zf C—B--F CZB--fF Z—B--F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TER Tz TBRT Tz TET
25,667 24,621 440 373 26,107 24,994
614 1,046 - - 614 1,046
- - 66 67 66 67
26,281 25,667 506 440 26,787 26,107

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]
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26

27

DEFERRED TAXATION (coNT'D)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has not recognised deferred
income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
approximately HK$24,713,000 (2021: approximately
HK$26,671,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. These
tax losses utilisation will expire as follows:

In the first to fifth year inclusive

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$658,000
as at 31 March 2022 (2021: approximately HK$563,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled approximately
HK$13,166,000 at 31 March 2022 (2021: approximately
HK$11,273,000), and the Group does not intend to remit
these unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to the
Company in the foreseeable future.

SHARE CAPITAL @S
2022 2021
—E-CE —E--&
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
g TR g gE THR
Authorised: %
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BRAEBIBIZEBR
At 1 April and 31 March TRA-BR=ZRA=1-H 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHEA :
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREBIBRZEER
At 1 April and 31 March THA-BR=A=t—-H 600,600,000 60,060 600,600,000 60,060

F-FEFLFN(BEEERF)

26 BIEFTEFH (&)

FZEBEZZE=A=1+—A0 " AEAGERHBIA
BXREBUIBMS 024,713,008 T(=ZF
——F: 426,671,000/ 7T) 2R EFTEFRE
o TR TEEXBS AN RRAERE
RS KRR KAEEEE RRER A UK
BISH - ZERMSIRZBHANT ¢

2022 2021
B F /-5
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

24,713 26,671

FZEFEZF=A=+—8 HEBHELHF
FOC BRI R 2 TR0 HE K B At 55 0058 TA 88 22 F
BHRAMY6580008BT(ZFTE=—F: 4
563,000/&7) e F-ZE-_—_F=A=+—H"
FLBREHAN13,166,0008T(ZFB=—
F 411,273,000 T) RAEAHEITET
A NESRCAR RN B KRB AR ZARLERF o
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28 RESERVES 28 &

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out FEAZ BRI FERTRENBELI K -
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve EERE

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations, BPEAXANKRAL - AABETHENR
certain subsidiaries of the Company are required to MEE B ZEEREHRR ST ARG E
apportionate certain percentage of their profits after tax to the MzERETEDL - RETEEXAMZE
respective statutory reserves. Subject to certain restrictions as TR - ZEE#EWEAAPERE QT E
set out in the relevant PRC regulations, this statutory reserve ZEATRBAEEHERAERR o

may be used to reduce any losses incurred or for
capitalisation as paid-up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve BHER

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference AEAZEAEENEBERZEESRET =
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share FREF=A-T-AZKHAEA(EADK
premium account of the group companies acquired pursuant TS R AR E 2 ROIENKZZH - 1t
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 22 ZFESREIR AR BAER TR 2HE °

March 2000, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof.

Capital reserve BAER

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus made by RAABERET -ZEEERF=-A-+-HEHAE
the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries of the Company AR RANAQARAETHEARZHAR
before the group reorganisation on 22 March 2000. e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@ Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Finance income
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment
properties
(Reversal of provision for)/provision
for inventory obsolescence
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets
Loss/(gain) on forward contracts
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
COVID-19-related rent concessions

Operating profit before working
capital changes

Inventories

Trade, retention and other receivables

Contract assets

Trade and other payables and provision
Contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

29 MERER

(@ ZAEEIFEZAESRE

*SI'

2022 2021
B F /-5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
BRPTSH A& R 15,582 12,595
LT HETFE
Tt 55 %% 3,737 4,324
S5 A (161) (178)
BB ARESR(ER)
2,000 (700)
HRFR (REKRE), 1KRE
(1,046) 5,236
HEM - T BRIZEETIHR
292 3,847
ERRENRTZHE
SR 94 139
ZBENSFH (W) 2,154 (544)
b~ T ERIRETIE
16,763 16,269
ERARRIB 30,651 37,541
2019 BRFHBHEREE TR (2,451) (6,028)
BEERELDH 2L EEF
67,615 72,501
7% 28,143 (2,433)
RIWT IR ~ BRI AR B 7R
R E At RIURR (55,081) 62,100
BNR= 74 (570)
RIS KA & B RIS R 3k & (908) 721
BN 33,089 (35,072)
KEFEZNE 72,932 97,247
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29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (conNT'D)

(b)

(o

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

Net book amount (Note 16)
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 7)

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

TKE 2 {E (M 16)

(b)

29 MEREARR (&)

HEM - " BERIRE ZFIERM

THEAAERERA HEDL T B
Rik& ZFSRIBE

HEML - T ERIRESIR

(B3E7)

HEML ~ " BRIRE BRI

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial

activities

At 1 April 2020
Cash flows
Non-cash movement

At 31 March 2021
Cash flows
Non-cash movement

At 31 March 2022

T-Z2-ZFFWA—H
NeRneE

FENE&EH
F-®--%=A=+-AH
Heha

FREEF

FoE-—F=H=+-H

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT T
329 3,847
(292) (3,847)

37 —

(¢ FREN LR RRNIK

Liabilities from financing activities

BBE D) 2 T
Lease

Borrowings liabilities Total
LB BT AR Bit
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TExT TR
10,656 77,546 88,202
8,868 (31,498) (22,630)
47,050 24,349 71,399
66,574 70,397 136,971
(24,491) (31,258) (55,749)
- 10,857 10,857
42,083 49,996 92,079
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*

30 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

31

Operating lease commitments — group company as lessor
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of investment properties as follows:

Within one year —£R

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2022, performance bonds of approximately
HK$32,511,000 (2021: approximately HK$37,595,000) have
been issued by the Group to customers as security of
contracts.

30

31

gEMARAE

SEMRHAE — FEQXEMENHBEA
TZEZ-5=ZA=+—-B  XEARETT
B 2RAYLEEREN T AN RKHE
FERTLIMT :

2021

s —F
HK$’000
TEx

325
o R
F-E_—_F=A=+—8 " AEHACZQAEF

RHEBARIFL32,511,0008T(ZFB=—F :
£337,595,000 78 7T) fERELIIBIR ©
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

32 REAERS

BREAEMSFSHENREZRS,ZRM» T
FER AEABSREATHTUTRS :

(@ Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2022 2021
REALRR R AR - —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FEx
A company under common Lease payments paid to Negotiator
control of certain directors Consultants Limited (“NCL”)
of the Company (Note) {45 Negotiator Consultants Limited
—AEANTETESHBEH (TNCLY) 2 K
2N F] () 2,774 3,826
Note: Dz

NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai,
Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, directors of
the Company, have beneficial interests. The lease payment was paid in
the normal course of business at terms mutually agreed between the
Group and NCL.

(b) Balances with related parties

NCLARRN B EEGHELE  BIFHEE - §
HEEERGIREERERENBE 208 -
BNREBFUSIRPEAEASNCLERY
BRI -

(b) XREALZZIR

2022 2021
|- F s —F
HK$’000 HK$"000
TR FRx
Other receivables from S BAT 2 B B9 At Rk R
— NCL — NCL 286 265

Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair
values (2021: same).

ZEHRATRT - RERAMERER °
KEESHAERE (ZFE=—F
@) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & W55k &M*

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33 ARBMFRRKRFEZED
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
2022 2021
—ECF B &
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
{p=2 FERT FHET
ASSETS B’
Non-current asset FERB B
Interests in subsidiaries M E A F & 90,918 90,918
Current assets REBE
Amounts due from subsidiaries R HTE 22 B 2RI 29,166 33,999
Other receivables HAth R 30 30
Cash and cash equivalents NeRMEZENY 972 1,196
_________ 30,168 35225
Total assets B#r= 121,086 126,143
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to equity holders 7~ 2 8 fr & #& B 51 2%
of the Company
Share capital i 60,060 60,060
Reserves = (@) 58,840 64,101
Total equity IR 118,900 124,161
LIABILITIES TR
Current liabilities T3 LB
Other payables HA R 2,161 1,895
Current income tax liabilities ANH PSR S 4 25 87
___________ 2186 198
Total equity and liabilities BAE R AR 121,086 126,143
The statement of financial position of the Company was RARMBRARECELESLT-FT=-=F ¢
approved by the Board of Directors on 14 July 2022 and were At+mA#E  FETIESRERZE -
signed on its behalf.
TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony
B B =E
Director Director
EE EE
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

Note:

(@)

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 April 2020
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 14(a))

At 31 March 2021

At 1 April 2021
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 14(a))

At 31 March 2022

BE -

(@)

F=Z=-FFMA—H
FE=F

&2 (FHE 14(a)
F-E-_-F=A=+-—18
F-Z—_-FmMA—H
FEHF

BRE (ME 14()

F=Z-—=—f=A=+-—H

BHTERBRARA2021/22FF4]

ADRERED

33 ADATMBMRARRERETH (&)

Retained
earnings
RE AT
HK$’000

FET
49,483

20,624
(6,006)

64,101

64,101
745
(6,006)

58,840
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Five-Year Financial Summary

Results
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Shareholders” equity

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five
years ended 31 March 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 have

Al 57
RARREE
BRI &3z R

B R A
BR™
BfR

ERE

been prepared on a consolidated basis.

EFEMSHE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—BoofF —F--F ZB-REFE ZFT-NF ZB-)\F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000
TER FiEx Tign Fign TR
11,894 10,769 11,326 15,085 44,194
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—B--fF —B--F ZEB-EF —T-hF ZB-)\EF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR FTigr FTiEx TR TiEx
702,224 702,678 678,621 620,317 656,011
(231,703)  (241,446)  (228,444) (157,441) (176,800)
470,521 461,232 450,177 462,876 479,211

FEABE-FE-)\F - ZB-NF ZEZEF .
CERC-FRIFCICF=A=+T-HLENEE

BEE2 LG BRFERAGIREEEERS
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